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CORPORATE INFORMATION

MODARABA COMPANY
AL-ZAMIN MODARABA MANAGEMENT (PRIVATE) LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Mian sheikh Arshad l"-.tmm.; Chairman

Mr. Basheer Ahmed Chcwnh:c Chief Executive
*Mr. H}Ed Shahnawaz Ahmed Rizn Director

Mr. Syed Errat Hussain Risvi Director

Mr. Mohammoad Yasin Director

Mr, Muhammad Sami Ullah Dhirector

D, Mrs, Namoos H'.lr.il.u.r Directnr

*Subsequent to the year end, the Board lost one of its prominent member, Mr Shahnawae A Rizvi who expired
on Yth September, 2025,

MANAGEMENT

Mr. Basheer Ahmed Lﬂ.hrrwﬂr}' Chief Executive

hls. Hamida Agecl Chief Orperating Officer/ Company Secrerary
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Syed Etrat Hussain Rizvi Chairman

hlr. Mian Sheilh Arshad Faroog Member

Mr. Muhammad Sami Ullah Member

Me, Mohammad Yasin Member

Ms. Hamida .-"‘I.Lln::uJ HI:CTL'?H.T:;' tor the committee

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Chairman

Me. Syed Etrar Hussain Rievi Member

D, Mrs, Mamoos H-.lr.il.uir Member

Me. Basheer Ahmed Choswdry Member

Mls. Hamida Ageel Seeretary b the eommittee
INTERNAL AUDITORS

LHY Hassan MNacem & Co.
Chartered Accountants

AUDITORS OF THE MODARABA
Grrant Thornton Anjurn Rahman,
Chartered Accountants

BANKER
Meezan Bank Limived

LEGAL ADVISORS
Holscott International
S8 B Durrani Law Assoicates

REGISTERED OFFICE/ PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSIMNESS
104-1006, Kassam Court, BC-9, Block-3, Clitton, Karachi-73600
Telephone: 021-33876031, 35870632, 35873373, 353873369, 35867102
Fax: 021-35870408 Web: trustmodarabacom

Ermail: infogdtrustmod arabacom

REGIONAL OFFICE
320, 3rd Floor, Garden Heighrs, 5-Aibak Block, New Garden Town, Lahore
Telephone: 042-35941957-8 Pax: 042 35866313

REGISTRARS
Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited
1* Floor, H M. House, 7-Bank Stjuﬂrr_', Lahore Telephone: 042- 37235081-2 Fax- (42-37358517
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MISSION STATEMENT

Trust Modaraba aims to evolve and practice exemplary standards of integrity and proficiency by
achieving balanced growth, building quality investment portfolio, maintaining high standards of
efficiency and providing good return to its certificate holders. Trust Modaraba shall endeavor to
maintain a comprehensive edge in the industry and contribute effectively in promotion of Islamic
Financial Regime. It shall adopt a management culture based on participation, motivation and

accountability to achieve professional and personal excellence and growth of human resource.

Trust Modaraba shall achieve a balanced texture of being a prudent and progressive organization

with a sound image in the market place.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Review Meeting of Trust Modaraba to review the
performance of the Modaraba for the vear ended June 30, 2025, will be held on Wednesday,
October 22, 2025 at 09:30 am at NBFI & Modaraba Association of Pakistan, 602, Progressive
Centre, 30-A, Block-6, PECHS, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-75401).

The certificate transter books of the Modaraba will remain closed from Wednesday, October 15,
2025, o Wednesday, October 22, 2025 (both days inclusive).

Karachi, HAMIDA AQEEL
September 24, 2025 Company Secretary
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

It is a pleasure to present a review of the year ended on 30th June, 2025 highlighting the
performance of the Modaraba and the role of the Board of Directors in all strategic martters for
the benefit of all the stkeholders.

Performance of the Modaraba for the vear 2024-25 remained successful even under the
challenging circumstances particularly emanating from continuous decline in policy benchmark
rates since June, 2024, The resilience shown to overcome these challenges and achieve satisfactory

results demonstrate inherent ﬁtrength of the m’gaﬂizatinﬂ.

The Board of Directors comprises of highly qualified professionals having diverse experience of

industry and financial sector.

It is with profound sadness and heavy heart that | report the passing of our dear Board member
Mtr. Shahnawaz Rizvi on 10th September, 2025, He was a valued and respected member of our
Board and contributed significantly to the growth of the organization. His insightful perspective
and unwavering support will be deeply missed by all of us on the Board and within the

organization as well. Our thoughts and pravers are for him and his family.

The Board plaved an effective role in all the strategic matters including oversight in relation to
recently introduced environmental, social and governance matters, The Board of Directors
comprised of highly qualified professionals having rich experience of industry and financial sector.
The Directors through the Board and its Committees fully participated in the meetings and
provided their valuable input in the decision making process of the Board and its Committees.
The Board is fully cognizant of the evolving regulatory landscape and shall endeavour to attain

highest level of compliance,

24th September, 2025 Mian Sheikh Arshad Farooq
CHAIRMAN
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited, the management
company of Trust Modaraba is pleased to present to the certificate holders, the Directors’ Report together
with the annual audited financial statements of the Modaraba for the year ended on 30th June, 2025,

ECONOMIC REVIEW

After enduring a series of prolonged and unprecedented shocks, Pakistan’s economy showed encouraging
sigms of recovery in the FY 2024-25 with GDP expanding by 2.7%. Decisive measures to establish key
macro economic fundamentals, stabilize exchange rate and curb inflation proved instrumental in fiscal
consolidation and building momentum for long term sustainable growth.

Inflation declined sharply and was reported at 10.73%% down from 27% in the preceding yvear. As a
consequence, State Bank launched a monetary easing cycle, reducing the policy rate by 1,100 basis points
during the year. This reduction helped lower debt servicing obligations, boost economic activity thus
creating a positive impact on the economic revival, Supported by improved macro economic activity and
a favourable external environment, the country managed to maintain growth across all major sectors,
albeit unevenly.

The Pakistan Stock Exchange sustained its bullish trend in the FY25 with the index moving up to over
125,000 points making it one of the world’s top performing equity markets once again. The increase is
attributed to strong corporate earnings, decline in policy rates and inflation, successful first review of
IMF-EFF program, all of which bolstered investor’s confidence. Credit ratings saw noticeable upgrade
with Fitch Ratings enhancing credit ratings to B- (B minus) with a ‘Stable’ outlook,

Having achieved a positive tumaround in economic fundamentals, key challenge for the country remains
transforming these gains into sustainable growth and solid fiscal discipline. Pakistan will need to
implement well calibrated reforms as outlined in its five years’ economic blue print, whilst navigating
elevated risks including those associated with an uncertain geo-economic environment, rising global trade
tariffs, heavy exposure to climate change and high domestic and external financing needs.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

It is encouraging to report that the financial year 2024-25, in line with the previous year concluded on a
positive note witnessing satisfactory operating performance based on sound business portfolio and
enhanced operating efficiencies. Challenges to the profitability in view of sharp reduction in benchmarlk

policy rates by almost 11% during the year were well responded by carefully designed business plan to
Ensure Optimum retums on investiments,

A snapshot of comparative key operating data is noted hereunder.

(Amount in Rupees)

FINANCIAL YEAR 2024 -25 2023-24
Total Income T2.ARTH 6060 ﬁ[,j}ﬂd_,_iﬁl |
Profit before Met Fee & Tax 20,803,543 29561017
Mﬂmﬁgtmcnr Fee 2086, 354 2.956,102 |
Tax 4,908 653 4841 691
Profitafter tax 18,390,008 20,854,519
EPC 62 0,71
Total Equiry 348,755,947 345265 849
Total Aszers 4i1 963,224 414,351 428
ROE 5.27% (RS S
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It is a pleasure to report that total income from all business segments registered an increase of 17% over
the previous yvear increasing from Re.61.9 million to Rs.72.6 million. Despite sharp decline in policy rates,
this growth in profits is also attributed to the management’s policy of capping of minimum lending rates
to hedge against the declining policy rates. In line with the business plan approved for the vear,
Diminishing Musharakah mode of financing constituted major segment contributing 70% to the revenue.
Opportunities for trading in the stock market were fully capitalized as result of which income of Rs.5.4
million was realized by way of capital gain and dividends. Other income of Rs.5.3 million was also
achieved which interalia, comprised of gain on sale of ljarah assets, documentation charges and profit on
bank deposits. Financing portfolio of vour Modaraba remained well diversified across various sectors
concentrating mainly on vehicle financing by way of Diminishing Musharakah mode as a result of which
risk profile of the Modaraba improved considerably, requirng minimum provision (Rs.124,447) to be
recorded for doubtful receivables. Improvement in stock market index appreciated market value of the
equity portfolio by Rs.1.9 million as at 30th June, 2025, which was reflected as unrealized gain in the profit
& loss account. Operating expenses (excluding deprecation) increased by 18% due to increase in costs
across the board and sharing of office rent with the management company. After accounting for all the
expenses and provisions, your Modaraba achieved pre-tax profit of Rs.26.9 million for the year under
consideration as against Rs.29.5 million of the previous vear. Profit after tax stood at Rs.18.40 million
transkating into EPC of Bs..62,

Disbursement during the year under consideration amounted to Rs. 215 million after thorough due
diligence of the clients. Focus mainly remained on vehicle financing, a niche segment underserved by the
banks due to regulatory cap on the maximum financing amounts. Financing exposure remained diversified
across various sectors to clients having satisfactory credit history and finandial standing. SME exposure
retnained selective. Dishursements accounted for 55% to individuals, followed by 27% to corporate sector
and 18% to SMEs. Due to improvement in the risk profile of the financing portfolio, infection ratio
improved significantly and no new client was added in the NPL portfolio.

Balance sheet footing stood at Rs.402 million with an equity of Rs.349 million as at 30th June, 2025, The
balance sheet reflects minimal leverage, with the equity base strengthening supported by improved
profitability,

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors, after careful consideration of the relevant circumstances and future business
requirements, has decided to pass over the dividend for the year under review.

CREDIT RATING:

It is a pleasure to report that VIS Credit Rating Company has re-affirmed entity ratings of Trust Modaraba
at BBB+/A-2. Outlook on the assigned ratings is ‘Stable’. Long term ratings of BBB+ reflect adequate
credit quality, protection factors are reasonable and sufficient. Short tenm rating of A-2 signifies sound
entity fundamentals and good certainty of timely payments.

The ratings reflect debt free structure of Trust Modaraba, adequate liquidity profile and improved

profitability metrics particularly from its musharakah financing portfolio. It is also acknowledged that the
Modaraba’s capitalization remains strong with an increasing equity base func hrough retained earnings,
Modaraba’s capitalization remains strong with an increasing equity base funded through retained earnings

FUTURE OUTLOOK:

Though Pakistan’s economy is stabilizing, the challenges for sustained growth still persist in the medium
term. In line with the downward trend of inflation, the policy rates may further be slashed by the
covemnment reducing returns on the financing portfolio.

Consistent policy implementation is thus crucial for building resilience and enabling sustained growth. The
current floods have wreaked havoce and will have multi dimensional impact over the economy and
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businesses. The period ahead has vet to experience after shocks of the flood posing challenges for the
tinancial sector too.

Keeping in view the emerging financial and economic landscape, your Modaraba will keep its focus on the
existing business model building upon internal efficiencies and professional excellence. Your management
will continue to focus on guality improvements, productivity & cost control to improve competitiveness
and enhanced profitability.

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK:

Trust Modaraba has put in place sound govemance framework which ensures corporate diversity,
strategic direction, clear objectives, well defined policies and sound internal control systems.

Trust Modaraba has a formal process of evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors and its
committees. The evaluation is carded out once a vear. To undertake the evaluation process,
comprehensive proformas are circulated to the members for their input. The responses are compiled and
results shared in the Board meeting for collective feedback of the members on the areas requiring further
IMprovements.

The Board of Directors meets at least once in every quarter to review the financial performance of the
Modaraba and deliberate on significant operational and strategic matters in line with the goals and
objectives set for the organization.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AND MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors consists of qualified individuals possessing knowledge, experience, and skills in
various professions which adds diversity to the Board and plays a crucial role in deciding effective
corporate policy and strategic direction.

Subsequent to the vear end, there has been a change in the composition of the Board of Directors as the
Board lost one of its prominent member, Mr. Shahnawaz Rizvi who left for eternal abode on 9th
September, 2024, after prolonged illness. May Allah rest his soul in peace!

Being a well qualified and highly experenced professional, Mr. Shahnawaz Rizvi contributed significantly
tor the growth of the Modaraba and his professional guidance in the board matters will be profoundly
missed.

Sad demise of Mr. Rizvi has created a casual vacancy in the board which will be filled in as per the
repulatory requirements.

Composition of the current Board of Directors, as at reporting date is thus, as under:

NAME CATEGORY

Mr. Mian Sheikh Arshad Farooq (Chairman) Non Executive Director
Mr. Basheer A. Chowdry (CEQ) Executive Director

Mr. Etrat Hussain Rizvi Independent Director
Mr. Muhammad Sami Ullah Independent Director
Mr. Mohammad Yasin Independent Director
Ms. Dr. Namoos Bagar Non Executive

Female Director
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Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the vear and the attendance of each director
was as under:

NAME MEETINGS ATTENDED
Mr. Mian Sheikh Arshad Farooq (Chainman) Four

Mr. Basheer A, Chowdry (CEO) Four

Ms. Dr. Namoos Bagar Four

My, Etrat Hussain Rizvi Four

Mr. Mohammad Yasin Four

Mr. Muhammad Sami Ullah Four

Mr. 8, Shahnawaz Rizvi Nil

All the Directors duly comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance pertaining to
the Director's Certification.

As per the Board's Remuneration Policy, Chairman, non -executive directors and independent directors
are entitled only for the fee for attending the meetings which is paid by the Management Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE & INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The Management of vour Modaraba believes in good corporate governance implemented through a
well-defined system of check and balances. The Board of Directors have established a sound system of
internal controls which is effectively implemented at all levels within the Modaraba.

The Board has constituted Audit Committee in compliance of the requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance which comprised of four (4) members including the Chairman of the Committee who s an
independent director. Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the vear which were
attended by the members as follows:

NAME MEETINGS ATTENDED

Mr. Etrat Hussain Rizvi (Chairman) Four
Mr. Arshad Faroog (Member) Three
Mr. Muhammad Samiullah (Member) Four
Mr. Muhammad Yasin (Member) Four

The Audit Committee meets once in every quarter to review annual and interim financial statements of the
Modaraba prior to their approval by the Board. The Audit Committee also focuses on compliance with
applicable accounting standards, any change in the accounting policies and practices, all related party
transactions and also significant adjustments resulting from audit.

Internal Audit functions are entrusted to an independent firm of Chartered Accountants. Internal audit
reports and compliance matrix are presented by the internal auditors to the Audit Committee on a
quarterly basis according to annual audit plan approved by the Committee, A full time senior staff member
of the Modaraba is also designated as Head of Internal Audit to coordinate between intemal audit firm
and the Board.

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Board has constituted Human Resource and Remuneration Committee to deliberate on the key issues
of human resource management policies. The Committee comprises of the following members:

* Mr Muhammad Yasin Chairman * Mr. Basheer A. Chowdry Member
* Mr Etrat Hussain Rizvi Member * Mrs. Hamida Ageel Secretary
* Mrs, Dr. Namoos Baguar Member
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One meeting of the Human Resource Committee was held during the year with full attendance of the
members.

ASSURANCE REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SHARIAH REGULATIONS, 2023

In terms of sharah Governance Regulations, 2023, external Shariah Audit of Trust Modaraba’s financial
arrangements, contracts and transactions with Shadah principles was conducted by a qualified team of
external auditors comprising of assurance practitioners and independent Shariah scholar. The report
confirms that the Modaraba'’s financial arrangements, contracts and transactions for the vear ended June,
2025 are in compliance with the Shariah principles, in all material respects.

SHARIAH ADVISOR REPORT

Well known Shariah scholar, Mr. Muft Zubair Usmani has been appointed as Shariah advisor of Trust
Modaraba. His guidance is sought on operational and compliance matters as and when required to ensure
adherence to the Sharah guidelines on operational matters. The Internal Audit functions also verifies
shariah compliance of the business transactions undertaken by the Modaraba according to the prescribed
standards. Report issued by the Shariah Advisor is placed in the financial statements of the Modaraba.
AUDITORS:

On the recommendations of the Audit Committee and approval of the Board, the present auditor M/s
Grant Thorton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants being eligible to act as the auditors have been
re-appointed as external auditors of Trust Modaraba for the vear 2025-26 subject to the approval of the
Registrar Modaraba.

PATTEEN OF CERTIFICATE HOLDING:

Pattern of certificate holding as at 30th June, 2025 is attached. No trade in the certificates of the Modaraba
was cartied out by the Directors, CEQ, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses during the year,
VALUE OF THE FUNDS INVESTMENT:

The Modaraba operates a contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made, both by the Modaraba and employees to the fund @10% of the basic salary.
Based on latest accounts of the fund, the value of itz investments works out to be Be.% 705,492 ac at 30th
June, 2025,

EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE:

Earnings per certificate of your Modaraba worked out to Rs.0.62 for the vear ended on 30th June, 2025.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Board wishes to place on record its appredations for the support and guidance provided by the
Registrar Modaraba and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The Board also acknowledges

the hard work and commitment of the executives and staff members. Finally, the Board extends its
gratitude to the certificate-holders for their umwaverng support to the Modaraba,

>

e

-

24th September, 2025, CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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Key Operating & Financial Data for the last Six Years

(Rupees in Thousands)
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Balance Sheet

Total asscts 40,195 414,351 388,757 413,388 ATRA10 357,503
ljara Financing 72,234 146,943 190,294 190,179 18401539 196,778
Morabaha financing 72,819 73,218 92,182 130,179 132,768 118,167
Diminishing Musharaka /Musharaka financing 228534 188,061 93,790 28168 27685 32 562
Assets own use 25,11 23,897 16,346 15,794 13,126 11,971
Current Assers 192,392 176,255 173,100 222175 223814 220 3495
Current Liabilities 33,749 41,569 26,913 44,745 33,02 26,024
Tortal Liabilities 53,207 72,958 68,752 94 338 63,199 5638
Paid-up Capital 298,000 298,000 298,000 20,000 298 000 248,000
Reserves 50,756 47,2606 28,506 28,5380 17,614 8,805
Net Equity 348,756 341,394 320,005 321,051 315612 306,863
Income Statement

lncome 74,365 68,479 38,433 58,316 43,403 33713
Operating expenses 47,502 38,918 37,284 43470 36,440 3304
Profit/ (Loss) before management fee 26,864 29,561 1,149 14,8410 §I7 3.209
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 18,390 20,855 (73) 11,365 0,00 1,732
Earning/ (Loss) per cartificare .617 0.712 - (38 022 (L
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019,
Trust Modaraba managed by Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited

The Medaraba Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. Total number of the directors were seven as per the following composition:
al  Male Siv (6}
b} Female Omne {1}

2. The composition of the Board was az follows:

Type of Directors MNames

Executive Mr. Basheer A. Chowdry (CECY)
MNon-Executive Mr. Shiekh Arshad Farooq (Chairman)
Mon-Execotdve *Mr. Sved Shohnawaz Rizvi
Independent Divector Mr. Errat Hussain Rizvi

Independent Divector Mr. Muhammad Yasin

Independent Director Mr. Muhammad Samiullah
FEMALE DIRECTOR

Mon-Executive Dr. Mrs. Namons Baquar

*Vulroeguent fo e year el the Board fost onee of ity promisent mesber, Mr Shabnaway A, Risei whe expired on 9%
Septensber, 2025, A vocancy has thas beew created which shall be filled in ar per the rgulatory requicements,

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them 5 serving as a director on more than seven companies
including this company.

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures,

L

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall business strategy and significant policies of
the company. The Board has ensured thar complete record of the particulars of the significant policies along
with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company,

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on marters have been taken by the

Board/ sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Repulations
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meeting of the Board.

& The Board has a formal pelicy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordanee with
the Act and these regulations.

Y. Five directors of the Modaraba Company have already obtained ditectors training certificanon and two are
exempt from the requirements by virtue of their experience as prescribed by the listing reguladons of the
Palkistan Stock Exchange.
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10,

L1

12,

L&,

The Board has approved appoinunent of chiet financial officer, company secretary and head of internal audit

including their remuneradon and reems and condidons of employment and complied with the relevant
tequirements of the Regulations.

Chief Finaneial Officer and Chiel Executive duly enduorsed the financial smrements before approval of the
Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of the members given below:
Aundit Committee

Mr. Syed Eoat Hussain Rizst Chairman
Mr. Sheikh Arshad Faroong Member
Mr. Muhamimad Sami Ullah Member
My, Muhammad Yasin Member

HRE and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Mubammad Yasin Chairman
Mr. Sved Etrat Hussain Rizvi Member
D, Mrs, Namoos Bagquar Member
Mr. Basheer A, Chowdry Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committees for compliance,

The fregquency of meetings of the committees were as per the follewing:

Andic Committee Oharterly
HR & Remuneration Commitiee Annually

. The Board has oursourced inrernal awdit function to a firm of Chartered Accountants who are considered

qualificd and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
COMmpany. A sentor staff member of the Modaraba i3 alsa d:sigﬂ:!t::‘] as head of internal audic to coordinate
berween internal auditer and the Board.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed thar they have been given a satisfactory rafing under
the Quality Conorol Review program of the Instimee of Charered Accountants of Pakistan and registered
with Aundit Owversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all the partners of the firm involved o the audic are
not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Excoutive and
chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appuointed 1o provide other
services except in accordance with the Act and regulations and the auditors have confirmed thar they have
observed [FAC gaidelines in this regard.

. The ]'E'.:.]uin:m{:nhi introduced },r}r the SECP t]'lr:;ugh a recent notification dated 125 _Funi:, 2{}24, 1:;:;__{:41'_5]:1%

Environmenial, Social and Governance {ESG) matters shall be implemented in due course.

19, We confiom thar all the reguiremenes of regulations 3,6,7 8, 27 32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
duly complied with,
20, Explanation for non-compliance of non-mandatory requirements other than the regulations noted above;
MNon Mandarory Requirements Regulation | Explanation
nis
Formal policy on ESG matters related to health | 10{4)-xiv Ar the moment Board provides an oversighs
and  safery, sustainabilivy, corporate  social ont the ESG matters. This was particularly
responsibiliry and other marrers of secial welfare, dizcussed in the recent board meeting and
a formal policy would be placed in the
fortheoming board meering,

(7 TRUST MODARABA Avnual Repon 1005
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Compliance with the requirements related o | 100A) The board is fully copnizant of the
governance and oversight of sustainability risks requitements and ar the moment provides
and opportunities, including DE & T policies, an  oversight on  these matters, The
formation of a commitee and  perodic requirements recently introduced by SECE
monitoring of sustainability relared straregies, through notification dared 12th June, 2024
shall be complied with during the year.
Orientation program for the Board of Directors | 18 The vrientation session tor Board to apprise

them on the latest developments in the role
of Board of directors shall be conducted in
the forthcoming Board meeting 1o be held
in Orcrober 20025,

Companies are encouraged to arrange trainings
under Directors’ training program.

19¢0) & (i)

Company Secretary being the only female
executive has acquired directors training
certification in july 2020,

The
further training needs and its suitabilicy for
the staff members in consideration with the
requitements of CCG.

Modaraba will continue assess the

Nomanation Committee & Risk Management
Committes

29 & M)

The Board effectvely

responsibilities of  the

discharges  the
nomination
committee and effectively monitors and
assesses the requirements with respect to
any changes needed on the Board
CONTMTITEEES,

The Board itself and also through its andit
committee  reviews the risks facing the
Modaraba o
management and internal conerol system is

put in place.

ensure that a sound risk

Posting of significant accounting policies on

company's website

Key elements of Whistle Blowing Policy,
Health & Safery Policy, Code of Conduct
have been uploaded to our website, and the
remaining ones will be uploaded in due
COurse.

21, We confirm that all requirements, other than regulations referred in clanse 200 above have been duly

complied.

Date: 24 September, 2025.

Mian Sheikh Arshad Faroog
Chairman
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Report of Sharfah Advisor

| have conducted Shariah Review of Trust Modaraba managed by Al-Zamin
Modaraba Management (Private) Limited for the year ended on 30" June, 2025, in

accordance with the Shariah rules and regulations for the Modarabas,

In my opinion:

V.

the Modaraba has introduced a mechanism which has strengthened the
Shariah compliance, and the policies adopted by the Modaraba are in line

with the Shariah principles;

The agreements entered into by the Modaraba are Shariah compliant and the
financing agreements have been executed on the formats as approved by the
Religious Board and all the related conditions have been met,

To the best of my information and according to the explanations given to
me, the business transactions undertaken by the Modaraba and all other
matters incidental thereto are in conformity with the Shariah requirements,
Istamic Financial Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan and the

Shariah Regulatlons for Modarabas,

No earnings have been realized by any means prohibited by Shariah.

In my opinion, the operatlons of Trust Modaraba are in conformity with the Shariah

principles for the Modarabas.

7

Signature
UNBMMAD TUBAIE USMANI
A81AH ADVISOR
Muhammad Zubair Usmani
Jamia Darul Uloom Karachi

26" August, 2025.
Karachi
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Independent Assurance Report

On Compliance with the Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023

To the Board of Directors of Trust Modaraba

Introduction

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement that the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has required in terms of its Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023
(the Regulations) — External Shariah Audit of the Trust Modaraba (collectively referred to as “the
Modaraba™) for assessing compliance of the Modaraba’s financial arrangements, contracts, and
transactions having Shariah implications with Shariah principles for the vear ended June 30, 2025.
This engagement was conducted by a multidisciplinary team including assurance practitioners and
independent Shariah scholar.

Applicable Criteria
The criteria for the assurance engagement, against which the underlving subject matter (financial
arrangements, contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications for the year ended June 30,
2025} is assessed, comprise of the Shardah principles and rules, as defined in the Regulations and
reproduced as under:
. Legal and regulatory framework administered by the Commission;
II. Shariah standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial
Institutions (AAOIFI), as notified by Commission;
IIl.  Islamic Financial Accounting Standards, developed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan, as notified by the Commission;
IV. Guidance and recommendations of the Sharah advisory committee, as notified by
Commission; and
V. Approvals, rulings or pronouncements of the Shardah supervisory board or the Shariah advisor
of the Lslamic financial institution, in line with () to (iv) above.

Management’s Responsibility for Shariah Compliance

Management is responsible to ensure that the financial arrangements, contracts and transactions
having Shariah implications, entered into by the Modarabas with its customers, unitholders, other
financial institutions and stakeholders and related policies and procedures are, in substance and in
their legal form, in compliance with the requirements of Shariah rules and principles. The
management is also responsible for design, implementation and maintenance of appropriate internal
control procedures with respect to such compliance and maintenance of relevant accounting
records.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics for
Chartered Accountants izsued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which is
founded on Modarabaamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due
care, confidentiality and professional behavior.
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The firm applies International Standard on Quality Management 1 ‘Cuality Management for Firms
That Perform Andits or Reviews of Financial Statewents, or Otber Asiurance or Belated Services Engagements”
which requires the finn to design, implement and operate a system of quality management including
policies or pn':cedureﬁ regarding compliance with ethical requirements, pn‘:ftsﬁimm] standards and

applicable legal and regulatory requirerments.

Our responsibility and summary of the work performed

Our responsibility in connection with this engagement is to express an opinion on compliance of
the Modarabas® financial arrangements, contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications with
Sharah prnciples, in all material respects, for the year ended June 30, 2025, based on the evidence
we have obtained. We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000, ‘Assurance Engagements other than audits
or reviews of historical financial statements’, issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board. That standard requires that we plan and perform this engagement to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the compliance of the Modarabas’ financial arrangements,
contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications with Shariah principles is free from material
misstaterment.

The procedures selected by us for the engagement depended on our judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of materal non-compliance with the Shariah principles. In making those rigk
assessments, we considered and tested the intemal control relevant to the Modarmbas’ compliance
with the Shariah principles in order to design procedures that are approprate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Modarabas® internal
control. We have designed and performed necessary verfication procedures on varous financial
arrangements, contracts and transactions having Shariah implications and related policies and
procedures based on judgmental and systematic samples with regard to the compliance of Shariah
principles.

We believe that the evidences we have obtained through performing our procedures were sufficient
and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusion

Based on our reasonable assurance engagement, we report that in our opinion, the Modaraba’s
financial arrangements, contracts and transactons for the vear ended June 30, 2025, are in
compliance with the Shariah principles, in all material respects.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date:

Mame of the Engagement Partner: Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb

|_2‘i \ TRUST MODARABA Annual Reporr 20235



AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER OF TRUST MODARABA

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Trust Modaraba (the Modaraba), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the statement of profit and loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flow,
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the information
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our
audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 (XXXI1 of 1980}, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state
of the Modaraba’s affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the vear then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Modaraba and Trust Modaraba in accordance with the International Ethies Standards Board for
Accountants *Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matters

1} We draw attention to note 16.1.1 to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025, which
inter alia states the details of land which is owned but not in the possession of the Modaraba; and

2) We further draw attention to note 20.2 to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025,
which states the details of unclaimed dividend for which management has maintained separate
saving account of Rs 5.00 million against unclaimed profit distribution of Rs. 12,83 million; and

3) We further draw attention to Note 5 to the financial statements, which describes:
1) That the financial statements that we originally re[porting on have been amended and;

if) That matter that gives rise to the amendment of the financial statements

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
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Key audit matters

Kev audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current perdod. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Following are the key andit matters:

S. No.

Key Audit Matters

| How the matters were addressed in our audit

1

Islamic financings and related assets
(Refer note 6, 9, 10, 14, 15, and 16 to the financial statements)

Islamic financings and related assets
are valued at Rs, 336.23 million which
constitutes 84% of the total assets of
the Modaraba.

As the Islamic financings and related
assets represent a significant clement
of  the financial  statements, a
discrepancy in  the existence
valuation could cause the financial
statements to be materially misstated
which  would impact  the
Maodaraba's reported performance.

or

also

In view of significance of financings
and related assets in relation to total
assets and the financial statements as a
whaole, have considered the
existence and valuation of financings
as a key audit matter.

W

1.

Our audit procedures included assessing and
testing the design and operations of kev
controls over the recognition, valuation and
existence of financing and related assets.

We performed detailed assessment of the
credit approval procedures of the financings
sanctioned in accordance with Modaraba
Companies and Modarabas (Flotation and
Control)  Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and
Modaraba Regulations, 2021 and performed
credit review on sample basis.

We  tested  controls over addition,
termination and periodic valuation of the
portfolios and performed other substantive
audit procedures on the vear end balances.
Moreover, we have reviewed documentation
required in the facilides files of the parties
and verified income from financing during
the year by performing recalculation through
amortization schedules on a sample basis.

In addition, we have checked repayment
received from the clients on sample basis.
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S. No.

Key Audit Matters

| How the matters were addressed in our audit

Islamic financiogs and related assets (continued)

b B

We have assessed the ECL model used by the
management to  caleulate the provision
against financings of the Modaraba for
appropriateness of the assumptions used and
the methodology applied. We also tested the
mathematical accuracy of the model.

We have evaluated management’s assessment
tor classification of customer’s fnancing
facilities as required by Schedule-II1 of
Modaraba Regulations 2021,

We also evaluated the adequacy of the overall
disclosures in the financial statements in
respect of financings issued and related assets
in accordance with the requirements of the
applicable financial reporting framework
NBFC Regulations and with the applicable
accounting  standards, provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017 and requirement of Modaraba
Companies and Modarabas (Flotation and
Control)  Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and
Modaraba Regulations, 2021,

Profit on musharakah finances
{Refer note 32 to the financial stateme

fiks)

Modaraba earns income from the
musharaka finances which is its
substantial income source, During the
vear, the Modaraba has recognized
income of Rs. 50.7 million which
represents an increase of Rs. 5.5
million (12%) over last vear.

We  identified income  from
musharaka finances as a key audit
matter as it is one of the key

performance  indicators  of  the
Modaraba and because of the
potential risk that income from

musharaka transactions may not he
accurately recorded, recognized in the
appropriate period, and not properly
disclosed in the financial statements,

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter
included the following:

Obtained an understanding, including the
design  and  implementation of internal
controls over recording and processing of
musharaka income.

Assessed  the  appropriateness  of  the
Modaraba's accounting policy for recording
of income and in line with the requirements
of applicable law, accounting and reporting
standards.
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5. No. | Kev Audit Matters ] How the matters were addressed in our andit

Profit on musharakah finances (continued)

3. Matched customer contracts with the income
schedule and performed recalculation on
sample basis to ensure that income is
appropriately recorded and also evaluated
that these contracts were appropriately
classified and recorded in the approprate
accounting perod.

4. On sample basis, traced the rentals received
from the underdying records issued to
contract holders and applied substantive
analytical procedures to determine any
varations.

5. Wealso evaluated the adequacy of the overall
disclosures in the financial statements in
respect of income from musharaka finances
in accordance with the requiremnents of
applicable financial reporting frameworks.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other intormation. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our andit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materally
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement in this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Modaraba for the financial
statements

Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and the requirements of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 (XXXI of 1980) and for such intemal control as management of the Modaraba Company
detenmines is necessary to enable the preparation of finandal staternents that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management of the Modaraba is responsible for assessing the
Modaraba’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management of the Modaraba
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Company either intends to liquidate the Modaraba or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company are responsible for overseeing the Modaraba’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I5As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a matedal
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The dsk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentonal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the crcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Modaraba’s internal control;

® Dvaluate the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management of the Modaraba Company;

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the management of the Modaraba Company’s use of the going
concermn basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materal
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Modaraba’s
ability to continue as a going concerm. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Modaraba to cease to continue as a going concern; and

¢ LEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlving transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
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all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Modaraba Company in respect of the Modaraba as
required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980
(XXXI OF 1980);

b) the statement of financial position and the statement of profit and loss, statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, (XXXI of 1980) and are in agreement with
the books of account;

¢) business conducted, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the
yvear by the Modaraba were in accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba;
and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980, (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the Modaraba and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section (17
of that Ordinance,

Other matter

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad
Shaukat Nasech.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: September 30, 2025

UDIN: AR20251012623P86bugH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER
OF TRUST MODARABA

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies {Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Trust
Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2025, in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of
the Regulations,

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Modaraba.
Chur responsibility 15 to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Modaraba’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of the Modaraba’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Modaraba to comply
with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an und{:t'sr:a,nd:ing of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required ro consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Modaraba’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Modaraba to place before the Audit Commitree, and upon recommendation
of the Audir Commirttee, place before the Board of Directots for their review and approval, its relared
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval ot the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendartion of the
Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come o our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Modaraba’s compliance, in all material respects, with
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Modaraba for the year ended June
30, 2025.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date: Seprember 30, 2025
UDIN: CR202510126s8qrwdtC9




STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ON ESG

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP) has recently introduced ESG disclosure
guidelines for listed companies which revolve around factors like protecting the environment,
reduction of waste, promoting gender diversity, environmental sustainability. The scope of ESG
initiatives is very diverse and comprehensive too. On its part, Trust Modaraba has plaved ns role in
promoting staff welfare activitics and through humble donations to the health welfare organizations.
Governance standards have always remained at the forefront of the organization. Trust Modaraba has
put in place an effective framework of ethical business practices. ESG initiatives shall be further
strengthened and a long-term plan in this regard shall be worked our in due course.

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT

Gender Pay Gap statement under Securitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Circular
10 of 2024 Following is gender pay gap caleulated for the year ended June 30, 2024: 2025

a) Mean Gender Pay Gap:  -106.14%,

b} Median Gender Pay Gap: -194.12%

c) Any other data / details as deemed relevant:

Trust Modaraba will actively support and implement initiatives to foster gender diversity.

For and on behalf of the Board of Director

Chief Executive




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

225 4
(Restared)

ASSETS Mote Rupees
Mon-current assets
ljarah assets ' 31,484,673 74,450,750
Fieed assets ¥ 24 559177 22 048 1906
Intangible asser b 541,612 SR,
Murababa finances 9 7,156,551 o, 108 L
Dirninishing musharakah financing 1t 144,117 878 125,420, K31
Lamyr term depiosics 11 284,062 B 062
Loy term inves tmeis 12 - 2284 1L
Deferred taxamon - net 14 1,416,970 163122
Total non-current assers 209,571,553 PR NG 462
Current assets
Current porten of long teem murabaha finances 9 40,282,404 41,708,561
Current portion of diminishing musharakah finances 1 74,237,249 45,244 554
Murabaha finances - secured 14 25,380,000 25, 400, (K100
ljarah rental recepvables - securcd 13 3,387,715 3,7HE2S
Musharakah finances (secured - eonsidered good) Lt 10,178,685 13,395,750
Shuart term investments 17 14,287 295 200,57 0,URT
Ineome max refundable 5280459 3,997 069
Advanees, prepayments and other receivables 14 10,291 497 11,565,245
(Cash and bank balances 14 066, 363 LIk (K1
Total current assets 192 391 671 170, 254, 9
Toial asseis 401,963,224 414,351,428
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Mon-current liahilities
Deferred income on murabaha 20 1,009 495 HIT 04
Customers' long ferm security depeosins by | 11,179,368 24 338 468
Lease labilitics apainst fght of use assets 2 7,269,660 6,142,142
Total non-current liabilitics 19.458,526 A1, 3HE 574
Current lahilities
Current portion of deferred income on murababa 20 2043 402 272 ThG
Current portion of customers” secarity deposits 21 5,840,750 11,60 1700
Current portion of lease liabalitics against right of use assets 22 2,730,428 1,794,923
Linclaimed profit discribuacons 23 13,697,085 12,825,131
Credins, acerued and other labilitics 24 9328475 [ 2 TA8 354
Chariry payable 235 108,608 269,532
Total current liabilities 33,748,751 41,565, 100
Total liabilities 53,200,277 T2H5T 674
MNET ASSETS 348,755,447 341,393,754
REPRESENTED BY
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Certificate capital 20 20, Ok (Wb 208 0, D
Reserves 27 50,755,947 47,265,844
Total equity 348,755, M47 345,205,849
Unrealized loss on revaluanon of investments 28 - (3,072 005

348,755,947 1,393,754
Contingencies and commitments 24

The annexed notes from 1t 534 form an integral par of these fimancial statements.,

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

™
-"‘fl_ f—-—-—'—"
s s
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 )24
[Restated)
- Rupees----mmv
loeome from jjarah - net 3 7,409,613 13,716,710
Profit on murabaha Anances 31 3,884,521 4,235 BiG
Profit on musharakah Anances 32 50,645,697 45,219 841
Dividend income on Couity investments 33 TO9, 000 Gl BT
Gain / (loss) on sale of short worm investments 4,564,535 (5,197,370
Orther income 34 5,272,294 3,208,924
72,575,660 1,904,581
Prowision fur doubtful receivables 35.1 (124,447) (2891344
Utirealized TV revaluaton of financial assets at far value
t.'rlrnu.gh priofit or loss 17.2 1,913,987 13712270
Lases on disposal of assees classified as held for sale - (4,246,5000)
74,365,200 a8 47007
Cperating expenses 36 (4'?,5'“1,557:] {380 l_.",‘:}l.:‘l]_:
26,863,543 20561017
Modaraba Management Company's fee 37 (2,686,354) (2,956,102)
Services sales tax on the Management Company™s remuneration 37.2 (402,953) (384,293}
Workers Welfare Pund 4.21 (475,485) (524,412
Profit before taxation and levy 23,298,751 25,696,210
Lewvy, minimum tax aned fnal taxes 3R (103,913) (4.841,691}
Profit before taxation 23,194 838 2,854,519
Tasatinn 39 (4,804,740) -
Profit for the year after taxation 18,390,098 A H54,519
Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted 40 0.617 (.712

The annexed notes from 1 to 534 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

N

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income :

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account

- Net change in fair value of investments classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income - net of rax

Ttems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit

and loss account

Orher comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

28

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited

e
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Modaraba Management Company)

DIRECTOR

2025 2024
(Besrated)

smmrmmsnes Rupees--mmameam-

18,390,098 200854 519
3,872,095 2,629 357
3,872,005 2,629,357

22,262,193 23 483 876

™

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

TRUST MODARABA Annual Repor 2025
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations
Cash generated from operations

Drecrease [ (Tnereasel in non-cerrent aisels:
- Long term murabaha finances
- Long term musharakah finances

(Drecrease) | Tworeace dn mon-corvent Sabifiites:
- Deterred income on murababia

- Customers security deposits

Purchase of fjarah assets

Long rerm deposits

Proeeeds from L]i:lpu:l'.ﬂ u!-ii'.l'r.ﬂ'l ASHELS
Income tax paid / dedueted

Met cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchaze of owned assets

Purchase of mtangible assets

Contribution to assers acquired on lease

Proceeds from digposal of owned assets

Met proceeds from disposal of assets classified as held for sale
Disposal of investments - net

Dividends received

Met cash generated from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment made against lease lability
Profit distributed to certificate holders

MNet cazsh used in financing activities
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial starements.

More

41

i)

Lo

2025 2024
(Restated)

------ —Rupeesaacaaa-
36,351,106 B 510 841
379,954 10,062,153
(39,955,115) (9619, 646)
(127,850) {232,186)
il 2200000
- (1, 10000,
d 08300
10,012,251 39335837
(6,192,043) (6,249 1081}
468,303 {12, 166052)
(981,626) (1,096,652
- (1,022,000
(4,940,758) (1,728,300}
2,399,240 555,760
= 4, 378500
20,267,828 15,601,419
799,000 G0, 670
17,543,684 17,349 397
(5,298,642) (2,199 .246)
(14,031,043) {3476)
(19,329,685) (2202720
(1,317,698) 2980 623
10,384,061 7403438
9,066,363 10,384 061

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

i

—

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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WNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1

22

2.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Trust Modaraba (the Modaraba) was formed in Pakistan under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the rules framed thereunder and is being managed by Al-
Zamin Modaraba Management (Privare) Limited (AZMML). The Modaraba commenced its business
operations on MNovember 12, 1991,

The Modaraba is perpetual, multi-purpose and multi-dimensional, engaged in the business of Murabaha,
Musharakah and ljarah arrangement, investment in markerable secarides, trading and other permissible
businesses. The affairs, activities and rransactions, performed b}- the modaraba during the year comply
with the rules and principles of Islamic Sharia in the light of guidance and directives given I::n_,' sharia
advisor and are in accordance with the guideline issued b:,- advisor of the registrar modaraba, SECT.

The principal place af business and repistered office is locared ar 104- 14, Kassam Coure, BC-9, Block-
5, Clifton, Karachi - 75600 whereas regdonal office is located ar 320, 3rd Floor, Garden Heights, 8-Adbak
Black, New Garden Town, Lahaore.

The VIS Credir Rating Company Limited has maintained long term rating of BBB+ and short term
rating of A-2 o the Modaraba, Catlook on the assigned rating is “Stable’,

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements otherwise stated have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (1FRS), International Accounting Standards (1AS) and
[slamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs), as are notified under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017, and

- Provisions of and directives issued by securities and exchange commission of Pakistan (SECP),
requirement of Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Floration and Control) Ordinance, 1980,
Maodaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Moxlaraba Regulations, 2021 and Companies Act,

2017,

Wherever the requirements of the approved accounting standards differ from the relevant laws, the
relevant laws have been followed.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared and presented in Pak Rupees which is the Modaraba's
functional and presentation currency, All the figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless
ortherwise srared.,

Basis of measurement

These Anancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except investments,
investment property, assets held for sale, lease liabilities and right-of-use assers. Investments and
investment property are measured at fair value. Assets held for sale are measured at lower of fair value
less cost o sell or carrying value, Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets are initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid ar the commencement date. Basis of measurement
has been discussed in relared notes 4.3, 4.2 and 4.11.1 respectively. These financial statements have been
prepared following accrual basis aceounting except for cash flow information,
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WNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2.4

2.4.1

2.4.2

2.5

Initial application of standards, amendments or interpretations to existing standards

The following amendments and interpretations to published accounting and reporting standards that are
applicable to the Modaraba's financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the
following dares:

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards
that are effective in the current year

There are cerrain amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are mandatory for
the Modaraba's accounting period beginning on July 1, 2024, but are considered nor to be relevant or do
not have any significant impact on the Modaraba's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these
financial statcments,

Effective date

IAS21 The effects of changes in  forcign  exchange rates July 1, 2025
(Amendments)
IFR5 51 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainabiliry- July 1, 2025

related Financial Information
IFRS 52 Climare-rclared Disclosures July 1, 2025

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Modaraba

There arc certain other interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Modaraba's
accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2025 but are considered not to be relevant or will not
have any significant effecr on the Modaraba's operations and are, thercfore, not detailed in these
financial statcments,

Effective date

IFRS 7 Financial instruments : Disclosure January 01, 2026
IFRS 9  Financal instruments January 01, 2026
IA521  Lack of exchangeability January 01, 2026

Other than the aforementioned standards, interpretation and amendments, LASB has also issued the
following standards, which have been utilized locally in relation to the Modaraba, by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at June 30,2025

Effective date

IFR51 First time adoprion January 01, 2026
IFRS 18 Presentation and disclosure in financial statcments January 1, 2027
IFR5 19 Subsidies withour public accountabilitv:Disclosures January 01, 2027

The management anticipates the adoption of above standards in furure being will have material impacr
on financial statements items and presentation disclosures.

Corresponding figures

Prior year's figures have been reclassified for the purpose of better presentation and comparison where
considered necessary,
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WNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

3

3l

3.2

3.3

3.4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in contormity with approved accounting standards requires the
usc of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applving the Modaraba’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually
cvaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectarions of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is tevised and in any future period affected. In the
process of applving the Modaraba’s accounting policies, the management has made the following
estimates and judgments which are significant ro the financial starements:

Useful lives, pattern of flow of economic benefits and impairment

The Modaraba’s management detenmines the useful lives and related depreciation charge, the residual
values and impairment of its fixed assers on regular basis. These are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the assets and the residual values, the same is changed to reflect the changed
pattern, Such change is accounted for as change in accounting estimate in accordance with International
Accounting Standard (LAS) 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Hsrmates and Errors™,

Provision against non performing financing

The Modaraba reviews its overdue receivables from jjarahs, murabahas and musharakahs at each
reporting date to assess whether provision should be recorded in the statement of profit and loss, in
addition to the mandatory provisions required in accordance with the Prudential Reguolations 1ssued by
the Securitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. In particular, judgment by management is
required in the estimation of the amount and timing of tuture cash Aows when determining the level of
provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual
results may ditfer, resulting in future changes to the provision. Income recognition on musharakah and
Murabaha is suspended when it is past due by ninery davs or more and classified as suspense income.

Impairment of other financial assets

Provision is recognized based on management judgment regarding the recoverability of balance under
expected credit loss method. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified.

Provisions and Contingencies

The Modaraba reviews its provisions and contingencies at each reporting date to assess whether
provision should be recorded in the statement of profit and loss. ln particular, judgment by
management is required in the estimation of the amount and oming of future cash flows when
determining the level of provision required. Such estimares are based on assumptions abour a number of
tactors and actual results may ditfer, resulting in future changes to the provision,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy and informartion applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.3.1.1

b)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost. For the
purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
other shorr-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.

Advances, deposits and prepayments and other receivables

Advances, deposits and prepayments are initially recognized at cost being the fair value of the
consideration paid together with the assodared transaction cost. Trade and other receivables are initially
measured at original invoice amount.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include loans to / receivable from employees, long term deposits, rrade
receivables, advances, deposirs and other receivables, cash and bank balances, murabaha finances, ijarah
rental reccivables, investments, creditors, accrucd and other labilities.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized ar the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial asscts are recognized and
derccognized, as applicable, using trade-date accounting or settlement date accounting,

Classification

The management determines the classification of its financial assets ar the time of initial recognition and
classifies its financial assets in the following rthree categories:

Fitencice! assets at anortized cost

A financial asset is measured ar amortized cost if the bAnancial asset is held within a business model
whosc objective 15 to hold financial asscts in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair valie through sther comprehensive inconre

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the financial asset is
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
sclling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asser give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Upon initial recognition, the Modaraba can elect to classify irrevocably its equiry investments as equity
mnstruments designated at FVOUCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments Presentation and are not held for trading, The classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis,
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c)

4.31.2

Fimendial assefr ab fuir valve throngh profit or loss

A financial asset is measured ar fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost
ot at fair value through other comprehensive income, However, the Modaraba can make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be
measured at fair value through profit or loss to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income unless these are held for trading in which case these have to be measured ar fair
value through profit or loss. The equity investments of the Modaraba held in short term investments are
classified ar fair value through profit or loss because thev are frequently traded while equity investments
in long term investments are classified at fair value through other comprehensive income because the
Modaraba intends ta held these to collect dividends.

Reclassification

When the Modaraba changes its business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all atfecred
financial assets accordingly. The Modaraba applies the reclassification prospectively from  the
reclassification date,

In case of reclassification out of the amortized cost measurement category to fair value through profic or
loss measurement category, fair value of the tinancial asset is measured at the reclassification date. Any
gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amormzed cost and fair value is recognized in
profit or loss.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit or loss measurement category to the amortized
cost measurement category, fair value of the financial asset at the reclassification date becomes its new
£r0ss cartying amount.

In case of reclassificadon our of fair value through other comprehensive income measurement caregory
to the amortized cost measurement category, the financial asser is reclassified ar irs fair value ar the
reclassification date, However, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive
income is removed from equity and adjusted against the fair value of the financial asset ar the
reclassification date. The effective interest rate and the measurement of expected credit losses are not
adjusred as a result of the reclassification,

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit or loss measurement caregory to the fair value
through other comprehensive income measurement category, the finanaal asset continues to be
measured at fair value,

In case of reclassificarion our of fair value through other comprehensive income measurement caregory
to the fair value through profit or loss measurement category, the financial asset continues to be
measured at fair value, The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive
incone is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the reclassification
dare,

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized ar the dme when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contracrual
provisions of the instrument, Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on rrade-dare
that is the date on which the Modaraba commits to purchase or sell the asser,
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4.3.1.3

4.3.14

Except for receivables from Modaraba's main operations, tinancial assers are initially recognized at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not caried ar fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried ar fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized ar fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit and loss, Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss 1s recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the
Modaraba's nght to receive payvments is established. Receivables from Modaraba's main operations are
initially measured ar the transaction price it these do not contain a significant financing component in
accordance with [FRS 15, Where the Modaraba uses settlement date accounting for an asset that is
subsequently measured at amortized cost, the asset is recognized initally ar its fair value on the trade
debt.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method.
Gain or loss on financial assets not part of hedging relationship is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss when the financial asset is derecognized, reclassified, through the amortization process or in
ordet to recognize impairment gains or losses,

When the contractual cash tflows of a financial asser are renegonated or otherwise modified and the
renegotiation or modification does not result in the derecognition of that financial asset, the Modaraba
recalculares the gross carrying amount of the financial asser and recognizes a modification gain or loss in
the statement of profic and loss,

Financial assets ‘at fair value through other comprehensive income’ are marked to market using the
closing marker rates and are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value, Net gains and
losses arising on changes in fair values of these Hnancial assets are t'n:n:ngniw:«d in other comprehensive
income. Interest calculated using the effective interest rate method is credited to the statement of profit
or loss. Dividends on equitv instruments are credited to the statement of profit and loss when the
Modaraba’s right to receive pavments is established.

Financial assets “at fair value through profit and loss’ are marked to marker using the closing market
rates and are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value, Net gains and losses arising on
changes in fair values of these financial assers are taken to the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which these arise. Fair values of quoted investments are based on current prices. Fair value hierarchies
are described in note 4.19,

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when:
- the conrractual rights to receive cash flows from the assers have expired; or

- the Modaraba has transterred its rghts o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without marerial delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either;

a) the Modaraba has transferred substannally all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

b the Modaraba has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has rransferred contral of the asset.

The difference berween the carrving amount and the consideration received is recognized in the
statemnent of profit and loss,

TRUST MODARABA Annual Repon 2025




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

4.3.1.5

When the Modaraba has rransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantally all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Modaraba continues to recognize the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement, In that case, the Modaraba also recognizes an associated
liability which cannot be offser with the related asser, The transferred asser and the associated liability
are measured on a basis thart reflects the rights and obligations that the Modaraba has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a puarantee over the transferred asset is measured ar the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration thar the
Modaraba could be required to repay.

If the Modaraba's continuing involvement is in only a part of a financial asset, the Modaraba allocates
the previous carrving amount of the financial asset berween the part it continues to recognize under
conrinuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the rransfer. The difference berween the carrving amount allocared to the parr
that is no longer recognized and the consideration received for the part no longer recognized is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Modaraba assesses on a forward-looking basis the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) associated with irs
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCL The Modaraba recognises a loss allowance for
such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects an unbiased and probabilicy
weighted amount that 15 determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes the ume value of
money: and

Reasonable and supportable information that is available withour undue cost or effort ar the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of furure economic conditions. A default on a
financial asser is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 90 days of when they

fall due,

The Modaraba applies the IFRS 9 general approach to measure Expected Credit Losses (ECL) for fjarah
finance and diminishing musharika. A lifetime ECL is recorded on [jarah finance and diminishing
musharika in which there has been Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) from the date of initial
recogmition and which are credit impaired as on the reporting date. A 12 months ECL is recorded for
ijarah finance and diminishing musharika which do not meet the crreria for SICR or "credit impaired”
as at the reporting date. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Modaraba
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the nsk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. The Modaraba also considers reasonable and supportive forward looking
information in determination of ECL. The allowance is increased by provisions charged to statement of
profit and loss and 1s decreased by charge-off, net of recoveries.

In evaluating the adequacy of ECL, the management considers various factors, including the nature and
characteristics of the obligor, current economic conditions, credit concentrations or deterioration in
collateral, historical loss experience and delinquencies.
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4.3.1.6

4.3.2.2

The Modaraba Regulations, 2021 specifies a criteria for classification and provisioning of impaired
assets. The Modaraba while recognising provision for impaired assets has considered the amount which
is higher of (on a facility basis) in accordance with the guidance provided by Accounring Srandard Board

(ASB):

- the provision required under the Modaraba Regulations, 2021; and
- the provision required under IFRS 9 using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model.

Write offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Modaraba has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entiretv or a portion thereof. Against each customer's
outstanding exposure which stands as impaired, Modaraba makes an assessment with respect to the
timing and amount of write-off based on the expectation of recovery. However, financial assers thar are
written off remain subject to legal enforcement activities for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial habilities are recognized ar the ime when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contracrual

provisions of the instrument,

Financial liabilities are classified, at ininal recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost except for
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a
financial asser does not quality for derecognition.

The Modaraba does not reclassify any of irs financial liabilities,

Financial liahilities are minally recognized at fair value minus transacrion costs for all financial liabilities
not carried ar fair value through profic or loss, Financial liabilities carried ar fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are credited in the statement of profit and
lerss,

Subaequent measurenent

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as deseribed below:

Finpancial fabilities at fair valie throwgh profit or fogs

Such liabilities, including derivatives thar are liabilities, are subsequently measured at fair value, Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for rrading and financial
liabilities designared upon initial recognition as ar fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liahilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term,

The amount of change in the fair value that is arrriburable o changes in the crediv risk of financial
liahility is presenred in other comprehensive income and the remaining amount of change in the fair

value of the hiability is presented in profit or loss.
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4.3.2.3

4.3.3

4.4
4.4.1

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
at the initial date of recognition, and only if it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency or a group of financial liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk managemenr or investment straregy, and
information about the group 15 provided internally on that basis to the Modaraba's key management
personnel. The Modaraba has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

ATl ather Eabilis

All other financial liabilinies are measured at amortized cost wsing the effective interest rare (EIR)
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process. Amorrized cost is calculared by raking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization
is included as finance cosrs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in respective carrving amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or rransferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilines assumed, is
recognized in the statement of profir and loss.

It the Modaraba repurchases a part of a financial liability, the Modaraba allocates the previous carrving
amount of the financial liability between the part thar continues to be recognized and the part thar is
derecognized based on the relative fair values of those parts on the dare of the repurchase, The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognized and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assers transferred or liabilities assumed, for the part derecognized is recognized

in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

A financial assets and a financial liabilities are offser and the ner amount is reporred in the statement of
financial position if the Modaraba has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Murabaha and Musharakah arrangements
Murabaha arrangements

Modaraba obtains an underraking (promise to purchase) from the client and purchases the requested
assets / goods from third parties and takes possession of such goods / assets that are the subject martter
of murabaha arrangements. However, the Modaraba can appoint the client as its agent to purchase the
assets/ goods on its behalf. Thereafter, its sells these goods / assets to the client at cost plus the profit
agreed upon in the promise. Murabaha sale is recorded at the invoiced amount and profit is recognized
in accordance with IFAS-1 (Murabaha) to the extent of pro-rata portion of sale price received as
compared to total agreed price. Profit on the portion of sale revenue not due for pavment is deferred
and recognized as liability, Goods purchased by the Modaraba bur remained unsold, with the Modaraba

consitute inventories, if any at 1'¢:1:mrring dare.
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4.4.2

4.5

4.6

Musharakah arrangements

The Modaraba measures the musharakah receivables on the basis of installments accrued during the
vear, The installments are accrued on pro-rata basis as per terms of the musharakah agreement berween
the Modaraba and customer,

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets in own use and related depreciation

Fixed assets are stated ar cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Depreciation
15 charged to income by applying the straight-line method at the rates given in note 7,

Depreciation on additions to operaring fixed assets is charged from the month in which the asset is
acquired while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off,

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized, Gain/loss on disposal of assets is charged to current vear’s income.

Assets given to customers held under Ijarah arrangements

Assets given to customers under ijarah arrangements are assets available / held for ijarah which are
accounted for as operating lease assets in accordance with IFAS-2 and are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Assers under ijarah arrangements are depreciated
using the straight line basis over the period of lease term, In respect of additions and transfers during
the vear, depreciation is charged proportionately over the period of ijarah, Gain/loss on disposal of
assets is charged to current year's income. At the end of the lease financing period, asset is transterred o
the customer in accordance with the arrangement of [jarah as per the Accounting and Auditing
Organisation for Islamic Financial Insttutions {AAOIFI) shariah standard,

- Muj'ir {lessor) presents the asset subject to ljarah in its statement of financial position according ro
the narure of the asser, distinguished from the assets in own use.

- Cost, including depreciation on the assets given on ljarah, incurred in earning the ljarah income are
recognized as expenses.

- Iminal direct costs incurred specitically to earn revenues from ljarah are recognized as an expense in
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Intangible Assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is
charged using the straight line method over the asset's estimated useful life at the rate stated in note 19
of the financial statements, after raking into account the residual value, if anv. The residual values, usetul
lives and amortisation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.
Amortisation on addirions is charged from the date the assets are available for use up to the date the
assers are disposed off in accordance with rate specified in respective note of the financial statements,
Gain and losses on disposal of such assets, if any, are included in the statement of profit and loss.
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4.7

4.8
4.8.1

4.9

4.10

Impairment of assets

The Modaraba assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 1s any indication of impairment. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asser 15 estimared. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the CATTVIE AMmount of the asser exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only
if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrving amount of the asser 15 increased o irs
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrving amount thar would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior vears.
Such reversal is recognized in the profit and loss account. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the
depreciation charge is adjusted in future perinds to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its
estimated usetul lite,

Stock in trade
Stock in trade for murabaha transactions

Murabaha transactions are entered into on customer order basis. The requested goods [/ assets are
procured on customer request and are immediately transferred to the customer. Therefore, in normal
circumstances, there 15 no mventory. However, unsold inventory, it any, is measured at lower of cost

and net realizable value as at the reporting date. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefirs will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made, Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Ijarah asserts

Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) 2 'ljarah' issued by the Institure of Charrered
Accountants of Pakistan was adopted by the SECP vide SRO 431(1)/ 2007 dated May 22, 2007, Under
IFAS 2, the ljarah rransactions are accounted for in the following manner:

Mustajir (lessors) presents the assets subject to [jarah in their statement of financial position according
to the nature of the asset. The Mustajir is required to distinguish these Ijarah assets from the assets in
WL USE,

Costs, including deprecianion on the assets given on ljarah, incurred in earning the ljarah income are
recognised as expenses,

ljarah income is recognised in income on an accrual basis as and when the rental becomes due, unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit of the use
derived from the leased asset is diminished.

The SECP, vide its letter No. 5C/ M/ B/ SCM /2009 dared March 9, 2009, allowed that in case of
Modarabas, IFAS 2 shall be applied for ljarah transactions executed on or after julv 1, 2008
Accordingly, the Modaraba has accounted for ljarah transactions executed before July 01, 2008 as
_nance leases and has treated the ljarah transactions executed on or after July 01, 2008 in accordance
with the requirements of IFAS 2,
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4.11

4.11.1

Leases

For contracts entered into, or modified, on or after July 1, 2019; the Modaraba applies IFRS 16 to such
transactions, except for the transactions where Modaraba is a lessor and the lease is an operating lease,
and in such cases, the provisions of IFAS-2 are applied. The Modaraba assesses whether a contract
contains a lease or not at the inception of a contract. For lease contracts the Modaraba reassesses
whether a contract 15, or contains, a lease further when the terms and conditions of the conrtract are
maodified.

The Modaraba determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Modaraba is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and periods covered by an oprion to terminate the lease if the Modaraba is reasonably certain to

not to exercise that option.

The Modaraba reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, or not to
exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the Modaraba and affects whether the Modaraba is
reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously included in its determination of the lease term, or
not t exercise an option previously included in the determination of the lease term.

The Modaraba revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease,

Modaraba as a lessee
Recognition

The Modaraba recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liabilitv at the commencement dare. A
commencement date is the dare on which the lessor makes an underlving asser available for use by the
lessee (the Modaraba).

The Madaraba has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
of all underlying assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying
asset, when new, is of low-value as per the threshold set by the Modaraba, The Modaraba recognizes the
lease pavments associated with these leases as an expense on straight-line basis over the lease term,

Tuitial measurement
ecse ﬁ"d.'")f.#:";j'

At the commencement date, the Modaraba measures the lease liability ar the present value of the lease
pavments that are not paid. The lease pavments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, or the Modaraba's incremental borrowing rate if the implicic rate is not veadily available. Generally,
the Modaraba uses irs incremental borrowing rare as the discount rare.

lease payments comprise fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable; variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate; amounts expected to be pavable by the Modaraba under residual
value guarantces; the exercise price of a purchase option if the Modaraba is reasonably certain to
exercise that oprion; and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term retlects the
Muodaraba exercising an option to tenmninate the lease.
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411.2

4.12

Right-of-use asset

The Modaraba initially measures the right-of-use asset at cost. This cost comprises the amount of lease
liabiliry as initially measured, plus any lease payments made on or before the commencement date, less
lease incentives received, initial direct costs and estimated terminal costs {i.e. dismantling or other site
restoration costs required by the terms and conditions of the lease contract).

Subsequent mesgsurement
Learse Lalility

After the commencement date, the Modaraba re-measures the lease liability to reflect the effect of
interest on outstanding lease liability, lease payments made, reassessments and lease modificarions erc.
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability and interest on lease
liability are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, unless these are included in the carrying
amount of another asset,

Lease pavments are apportoned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease lability using
the incremental I::ﬁrmwing rate implicit in the lease to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Right-of-uise asset

Afrer the commencement date, the Modaraba measures the right-of-use asser at cost less accumulared
depreciation and accumulated identified impairment losses, if any, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability.

The Modaraba depreciates the cost of Aght-of-use asset, net of residual value, from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the Aght-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.
However, if the lease contract rransfers ownership of the undeslying asset to the Modaraba by the end
of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects thar the Modaraba will exercise the
purchase option, the Modaraba depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the
end of the usetul life of the underlyving asser.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit and loss ar rates given in note 17.2.

Modaraba as a lessor

Leases in which the Modaraba does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Such leases are treated under IFAS-2 and the
accounting policy for assets given to customers under ijarah arrangements (Note 4.5.2) is applied for
such leases.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from ijarah and murabaha is recognized as per the requirements of the lslamic Financial
Accounting Standards (IFASs). Repavment schedule is agreed at the start. Payments are usually due over
the period of contracr ar different dates.

Murabahaz profir

Profit on rransactions under murabaha arrangements is recognized on a pro-rata basis taking into
account the elapsed duration for payment of murabaha amounts payable by the customer. Profit not due
for payment in the current year is deferred by accounting for unearned murabaha income with
corresponding credit to deferred murabaha income which is recorded as a liability. The same 15 then
recognized as revenue on a ume proportionare basis as and when the due dates approach for payment
of recoverable amounts by the customers.
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4.14

Musharakah profit

Profit on diminishing musharakah transactions is recognized on accrual basis,

ljarah rentals

ljarah income is recognized in income on an accrual basis as and when the rental becomes due, unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit of the use
derived from the leased asser is diminished.

Documentation income
Documentation charges, front end fees and other ijarah related income are taken to the statement of
protic and

oss on an accrual basis,

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.
Capital gain or loss

Capital gain or loss on sale of investments is recognized in the period in which it arises.

Rental income
Rental income from investment properties 15 rn:n:ngnixcd on time proportionate basis,

Return on deposit accounts
Return on deposit accounts 18 recognized on accrual basis. Income from shariah non compliant assets
classified as charity pavable.

Levy and income tax

Current
Prowvision tor current taxation is based on taxable income for the vear determined in accordance with

the prevailing laws for taxation on income earned. The current tax expense is caleulated using prevailing
tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the raxable profits for the year ar enacted rtax rates. The charge
for the current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, relating to prior years arising
from assessments made during the year for such vears.

Deferred

Deferred taxation is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method providing for temporary
differences between the carrving amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary iming differences and deferred rax assets ro the exrent
that it is probable thar taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused rax losses and tax credits can be unlized.

Deferred tax is calculated based on the rates thar have been enacted or nonfied for subsequent
enactiment up to the reporting date and are expected to apply to the period when the difference arises.

Levy

In accordance with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance), compuration of final taxes is not based
on taxable income. Therefore, as per IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes
and Final Taxes issued by the Institute of Charrered Accountants of Pakistan (1CAP), these fall within
the scope of IFRIC 21, There are no material final taxes/levy that fall within the scope of IFRIC 21

during the year ended June 30, 2025,
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4.15

4.16

4.18

4.18.1

Post employvment benefits

The Modaraba maintains a defined conrribution plan for post employment benefits and operates an
approved provident fund for all its employees. The Modaraba and the employees both make equal
monthly contributions to the fund ar the rate of 1084 of the basic salary of employees.

Dividend - Profit distribution and other appropriations of profit

Dividend distribution to the Modaraba's certificate holders is recognized as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Modaraba Management Company.
Transfer to statutory reserve and anv of the mandatory approprations as may be required by law are
recognized in the period to which these relate.

Appropriations to statutory reserves declared / approved subsequent to statement of financial position
date are considered as non-adjusting event and are not recorded in financial statements of the current
vear. These are recognized in the vear in which these are declared / approved.

Earnings per certificate

The Muodaraba presents basic and diluted earnings per certificate (EPC). Basis EPC is calculared by
dividing the profit or loss arrributable to ordinary certificate holders of the Modaraba by the weighred
average number of ordinary certificates outstanding during the vear. Diluted EPC is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate holders and the w eighted average number
of ordinary certificares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potennal ordinary certificates, if any.

Operating segments
An operating segment is a component of an entity:

4l that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including
revenues and expenses relating to transacrions with other components of the same entity);

b} whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entitv's chief operating decision maker to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and

¢} for which discrete financial informanon is available,

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The Chief Execurive Officer of the Modaraba has been idenrified as
Chief Operating Decision Maker,

The Modaraba is divided into four operating segments:

- Murabaha finances:

- ljarah finances;

- musharakah finances; and
- Investments.

All these operating segments are locared in Pakistan.
Segment assets and liabilides

The assets of a segment include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of
receivables and fixed assets, net of allowances and provisions. Segment liabilines are primarily
unallocable.

'ia."- TRUST MODARABA Annual Repon 2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

4.18.2 Allocation of segment expenses

4.19

All identifiable expenses are directly attributed ro the respective segments.

Fair value measurement

The Modaraba measures certain financial instruments, and non-financial assets such as assets classified
as held for sale and investment property, at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Modaraba has access ar that dare. The fair value of a liability
reflects the effect of non-performance risk. When applicable, the Modaraba measures the fair value of
an instrument using the quoted price in an active marker for that instrument. A market is regarded as
active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis,

When measuring fair value, the Modaraba takes into account the characteristics of asser or liability
which include the condioon and location of the asset and restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the
ASSEL.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that marker participants act in their economic best
Interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset rakes into account a market participant's ability to
generare economic benefits by using the asser in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Modaraba uses waluation techniques that are approprate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient dara is available ro measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inpurs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

Yaluation techniques used to measure fair value are applied consistently unless a change in a valuation
technigue or its application results in a measurement thart is equally or more representative of fair value
in the crcumstances. Revisions resulting from a change in the valuation technique or its application are
accounted for as a ch ange In accounting estimare.

Al assers and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input thart s
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Fair value hierarchy categorizes into following three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure tair value:

- Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assers or liabilities that the
Modaraba can access ar the measurement darte.

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level T that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asser or liability,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Modaraba has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the narure, characrenstics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above,
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4.20

4.21

5.1

5.2

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assers classified as held for sale are presented separately and measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts immediately prior to their classification as held tor sale and their fair value less costs to
sell. However, some held for sale assets such as financial assets or deferred tax assets, continue to be
measured in accordance with the Modaraba's relevant accounting policy for those assers. Once classified
as held for sale, the assets are not subject to depreciation or amortization. However, annual impairment
testing is carried out by the management,

Workers' Welfare Fund

The modaraba accrues and pays 2% conmbution of its total income to Sindh Revenue Board as
required by the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund (SWWF) Act, 2014,

RESTATEMENT IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The June 3(), 2024 financial statements were restated for a correction in an accounting error relating to
the change in accounting policy in respect of taxtion and an accounting arror related to provision of
sales rax on management fee.

Change in accounting policy in respect of taxation

During the vear, the Insatute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ("ICAP?) has withdrawn Technical
Release 27 *IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)" and issued the IAS 12, Applicanon Guidance on
Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes™ ("the Guidance”). Accordingly, in accordance with the
Guidance, the Company has changed its accounting policy to designate the amount calculated on
taxable income using the notified tax rate as an income tax expense. Any excess over the amount
designated as income tax, is then recognised as a ‘Levy” under 'LAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assers”, which were previously bcing rn:cugniscd as ‘income rax’,

Accounting error related to provision of Management fee

The June 3), 2024 financial statements were restated tor a correction in an accounting error relating to
the provision of sales tax payable on management fee. The 2024 financial information has been updated
tor correct this error,

The 2024 financial information has been updated ro correct for this error, as follows:

Effect of prior perod error adjustment on the financial As previously Correction
As restared

statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 reported of error

Rupees
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
Pentic net of nperating expenses 501,007 - 561,017
Mndaraba Manapgement Company's fee (2,956, 102) € (2.955,102)
Services sales tan on the Management Company's semuneranon - (384,293 (384,203
Workers' Welfare Fund (532,008, 7RG (524 413
Profit before taxation and levy 2G0T BT (3T6,607) 25 65, 210
Levy, minimm tax and final raxes - [4,541,091) (4,841 6591
Profit before taxation 26072 81T (3,218,298) H1LE5, 519
Taxation (4,841,691 4841601
Profit for the vear after taxation 2,231,126 (3T06,607) M E5 19
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

7.2

7.3

7.4

0.1

9.2

0.3

2025 2024
Right of use assets Mote 0000 e Rupees-————-
Crpening balance 8,968,532 22400 603
Additions during the year 5,731,851 8584 547

14,700,383 10,825 020
l)uprﬁ'ti:{tic:ﬂ c]u:gu for the vear 36 {3,860,426) (LB56,47H)
Closing balance TiE T4 10,839,957 8,968,532
Lease term 1-5 years 1-5 vears
l)u]':un'tiﬂtjc:ﬂ rate 20%% 2P

There are no varighle lease payments in the lease contracts. There were no leases with residual value guarantees or

lenses nor ver commenced o which the Modarabn is commitred,

All assets are geographically located in Pakistan,

INTAMNGIBLE ASSET

Cuost

Balance at beginning of the year 2,272,000 1250000
Additions during the year - 1022 000
Closing balance 2272000 2272000
Accumulated amortisation

Balance at l'n.‘gjmli!lg of the year 1,323,060 1,094 448
Charged during the year i 407,328 228612
Closing balance 1,730,388 1,323,000
Written down value 541,612 948,940
Fate %4 33%% 339

MURABAHA FINANCES - SECURED

Considered gcmtl 1 & 92 17,357,111 16,579,718
Considered doubtful 9.3 36,755,652 37,912 999
Prowision for doubt ful |:“J|'|g rerm murabaha finances 9.4 {6,673,778) 6,674,906
47,438,985 47817721
Current portion (40,282,404) 41,708,561)
Non-current portion 7,156,581 6,109 160

The Modaraba has sold goods under murabaha arcangements wherebhy pavment is deferred along with specified
profit margin, These finances are secured by way of hvpothecation stocks, mortgage of properties, demand
promissory notes, charge on assets and personal guarantees.

The maximurm aggregare amount ourstanding during the year ar any point is B 66,265,408 (2024: Rs a0,%09,052),

Break up of considered doubtful Murabaha finances

Considered doubtful 38,251,245 39,511,777
Suspended inenme U | (1,495,593) {1,598.778)
36,755,652 37,912,999
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9.4

10

10.1

10.2

10.3

1n

2025 2024

Suspended income Mote e Rupees-—-aaeamv
Opening balance 1,598,778 1,714,508
Reversal during the vear 3 (103,185) (221,600
Suspension made during the vear 3 - 109 870
1,495,593 1,598.778

The doubtful mursbaha finances inelude receivables from 6 (2024: 6) costomers under murabaha finanee which is
under litigation. Legal proceedings againse these customers are in process in the Courts of Law, The Courts have
awarded decree in favor of Modaraba in 2 (2024: 2) cases for recovery of Ba 54002 million (2024: Rs 54002

millis -nj.

Provision for doubtful long term murabaha finances

Opening balance
Provision for the year
Reversals for the vear

Closing balanee

DIMINISHING MUSHARAKAH FINANCING - SECURED

':‘.‘* M1 !-'\j{:ll;.'l'(.'lll. gﬁf !l'.l.

Current il wrtion

Prowision for Diminishing Musharakab finances 10k3
Non-current portion

2025 24
————— Rupees——aa--
6,674,996 5511015
- 1,430,395
(1,218) (266,414)
(1,218) 1,163,981
6,675,778 6,074,996
222 089,949 178,400,012
(74,237,249 (45244 3500
(3,734,822) (3,734,822
144,117 878 129 420 831

This represents facility given to 58 (2024 45) customers, The facilities are secured by wav of asset. Customer will

participate in cost ranging between 25% to 50% in purchasing the musharalkah asset.

The maximum agpregare amount outstanding during the year at any point s Rs 2220089949 (2024: Ks

183,356,803).

Provision for Diminishing Musharakah finances

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Closing balance

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Rented property
Cithers

2025 24

————— Rupees-——---
3,734,822 1,389,102
= 2345720
3,734,822 3,734 822
154,862 154 B2
105,000 105,060
34,800 34,800
294,662 204 62
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20025

MNote 2025 2024

13 DEFERRED TAXATION Rupees
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference in respect of:
Fixed asscts in cown usc 2,068,858 1,503 741
Right of use assets 3,143,588 26000 874
Provision for short term Murabaha finances {5, 800) -
Prowvizion for doubrful Tiarah rental recetvables (366,862) (368,688
Provision For doubtiul Muorabaha Anances {1,915,022) (1048,303)
Prowvisicny for shorr rerm Musharakah finances (9'3,1“3} (43,008
Prowision for Diminishing Musharakah finances (1,083,098) (LOB30%E)
Provision against teceivable - FSD property - (159210}

Unrealized less on revaluanion of financial
- assets at fair value through profit or loss (265,500) (437,000%
Unrealized loss on revaluation of financial asscts at

- fair walue through other comprehensive income - (250,221}
Lease liahiliges against vight of use assers (2,5900,026) 2,303,199
(1,416,970 (1,639.122)
14 MURABAHA FINANCES - SECURED
Consdered gnod -
Consdered doubtful;
- Regrular parties 5,000,000 .
- Parties under litigation 14.1 28,800,000 33,8000 000
33,800,000 33, H00, 000
Provision for doubtful receivables 142 (8,420, i) (8,00 000
4.4 25,380,000 25 400 000
14.1 These represent recervables from 2 (2024 3) customers under Murabaha finance. Legal proceedings against these

customers are in process in the Honorable Courts of Law (Banking court of Lahore). The Courts have awarded decree
in faver of Medaraba in 2 (2024 3 cases for recovery of Rs. 33944 million (2024: Rs. 39,727 million},

14.2 Provision for doubtful receivables
Opening balance B, 400,000 11,540 D88
Tncome sr.mEx:n.t[r;d clurjﬂg rhie year 351 20,000 -
Reversal during the year - (130,577
Wrirten off during the vear due o zertlement - (3010411
B, 420,000 8,400 {HH)

14.3 The maximum aggregate amount outstanding during the vear at any point = Be 33,800,000 (2024: Re 33,800,000,

14.4 The Modaraba has sold goods onder Murabaha arrangements whereby pavment is deferred along with specified profit
margin, These finances are secured by way of hypothecation of stocks, mortpage of properties, demand promissory

wites, © hSTH'(‘.‘ O assets !Iﬂ.d '|3IL‘T5IIL'IE] ELaramoecs.

15 I[JARAH RENTAL RECEIVABLES - SECURED
Considered grod 151 470,042 BTT, 050
Parties under litivation - consdered doubtful 15.2 5.026,212 5,026,107
Sugpended fjarah income - eonsidered doubiful 15.3 (843,499) (B43 4tnh
Prondsion for doubrfal ijarah renral recemvaldles 134 {1,265,,04“} (1271, 33
3,387,715 3.788.U25
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15.1

15.3

15.4.1

1a.1

These are secured against farah assets and personal puzrantees. In some farahs, additional collatersl is also obtained in

the form of mortgaged property, The Modaraba 15 enttled 10 repossess and sell the ijnmh assets in case of defaul by

the customers.

The doubtful Lavah rentals inelede recevables from 2 (2024: 2} customers under Tjarah finance which is under

rigation. Legal procecdings against these costomers are in process in the Courts of Law, The Courts have awarded
decree in favor of Modaraba in 2 (2024 2} cases for recovery of Rs, 3.026 million (2024: Rs. 5.026 million),

Suspended fjarah income - considered doubtful Note

Opening balance

[mevrme susPr:mll:'t.l l:h.l.r]ng the vear y
! a0

Reversal during the year

Provision for doubtful Tjarah rental receivables

Opening balance

Prowision tor the year

Reversal during the year

Clowsing balances 15.4.1

All rentals recetvable pertin to arrangements executed under lslamie modes of finanemg,

MUSHARAKAH FINANCES - SECURED Mote

Crinsidered griod
Prowizion for Muasharakah Bnances 16.1

Provision for Musharakah finances

Opening balance

Reversal for the year

Closing balanee

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Financial assers ar fair value theowgh profit o loss:

WIT lslamic Fquiry Pund
Shares of listed companies 17.1

2025 2024
Rupees
543 40949 #3444
543,499 #3494
1,271,339 1,239,706
- I 1,633
(6,299) :
1,265,040 1,271,339
2025 2024
Rupees
10,499,750 13,716,817
{121,061) 321 061)
10,178,689 13,395,756
321,061 B20.474
= 499,413
321,061 321,061
- Hid
14,287,295 2L970,173
14,287,295 20,970,987

TRUST MODARABA Annual Bepon 2023



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20025

17.1

Shares of listed companies

Unless otherwise stated, the holdings are in fully paid ordinary shaves of Bz, 10 cach,

Mumber of shares Mame of Investee June 30, 2025 | 30, 2124
2025 2024 AE::F: Market Value  Awverage Cost Marker Value
Rupees
CEMENT
- A0 Fawji Cement Company Limiced - - HEH, B U160, 400
- 20,0001 Maple Leaf Cement Limined - - T30, 240 T LI
- - 1645 143 LG40
OIL & GAS MARKETING COMPANIES
- 111K Pakastan Stare Ol Company Limied - - 150k, 341 LEZHA0
- 13,060 Shell Pakizwan Limited - - 2427 483 2,001,500
- 120006001 Hascol Perolean: Linited - - 1,622 511 T4 HiN
- i (060 Sud Meethern Cras Pipelines Limined - - 44,608 A0,27H
LRI S Suathern Gas Company Limied 376,9% 427,900 - -
376,996 427,900 [ ERRIE 2,060, 3454
OIL & GAS EXPLORATION COMPANIES |
- A0 Pakistan Petrnleom Limsied - - 3,563,730 3,513,300
- Loyt Ol & Cras Dievelopment Company = = 1,377,431 L.A33. 700
Limited
- - 4,941,161 48670000
REFINERY
3 4,000 Atrock Refinery Limited 2 = 1,506,564 1.406,364)
200, Wy 25306000 Pakistan Refinerr Limined 717 236 67 8,600 HE2 742 SHEO000
320,000 100,000 Coerevico Pl Limied 2,628,231 2,261,600 1,082,241 AR3,0000
3,345 467 2O, 20 3424 547 271,364
POWER GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION |
1, oy Linieiy Huly Prowver Company 1,354 090 1,378,100 1632763 1,630 =0
1354054 1,375, 104 1,632 763 Lt HOM
FOOD & FERSONAL CARE PRODUCTS
- Lt Unity Fowds Lid - - AT ATT A01,500
- 2000600 Fawji Foeods Fimited - - 220,678 177 4000
- - 548,655 ATHUO
TEXTILE COMPOSITE
- 2535000 Mishat Mills Limited - - 2488379 LH0G,6T5
: = 2 48T LAOGATS
PHARMACEUTICALS
S, Ot - Cit Pharma Fimited 4,547,833 4,198, 501 - -
T, iy 5000 The Seatle Company Limited 887,028 A7 7,000 204 629 285,600
5,434 861 5,075 500 U4 625 2856000
TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION
= Lo MNetaol Technedopies Linined - - LAT2 MK 13570011
S, 000 Cretepus Digital Limited 3,047 250 2,575 D - -
3,047 250 2,575,000 L3725 La57 6001
CHEMICALS
A0,y 20001 Engro Polvmer & Chemnieal Limied 1,707 262 1,262 000 939,374 HEPE A0
1,707 262 1262000 959,474 HOH A0
TRAMNSPORT
- 25,0000 Pakistan International Bulk Terminal - - 16,1 154, 254)
- - L3, i1 154,254
PROPERTY
- 200 TPL Properties Limioed - - 231,678 174 400
= = 231674 174, HO0
PAPER, BOARD & PACKAGING
19,500 L0 Century Paper and Buoard Mills 790,112 618,595 AU, 164 2S00
790,112 e, 595 4, Lo 201500
165,056,038 14,267,295 24.652,9013 20,970,173
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17.2 Unrealized gain on revaluation of financial assets MNote Rupees
at fair value through profit or loss

Unrealized gain on shares 17.21 1,013,987 n 13,476,480

Unrealized prin on mumal funds 1722 - 233,TH)
1,913,987 137122

17.21 Unrealized gain on shares

ntference between market value and average cost |

- Current year (I.TBE,'M!-]H (36R2,7HN

- Priosr vear 3,682,730 17,159, 210)
1,913,987 1 3476480

17.22 Unrealized gain on muotual funds

Ditference berween market value and average cost

- Current year - 153
- Prioyr vear -

18 ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
Leans te / receivable from amplovees - considered good 141 399,000 500
Prepayments 4,927,915 4,128,220
Advance against lease - G620
Advance against expenses 22303 RRINLEL
Accrued probe (secured - considersd pond) 142 235374 2537 683
Trade recervables - consdered good (secured) 133 - -
Lagal suies” ehavges receivable seeuted - eonsidered pood) 134 2,204,112 231,07
Sundry recervables (unsecured - considered pond) 384,474 541,763
10,291,497 11,363,248
18.1 This includes the Ioan given @ and receivables from executives amountng to Ra 00232 mallion (2024: Rz 4015 mallion). The

executves are included in the key management personnel of the Modaraba, The lans are provided for maximom period of one vear
period and deductble friom empliyvees sataries.

Maximum apprepare balance due from executives and employees, at the end of any month dusing the vear, was R 0,395 million
(2024 Rs. 0L872 million}.

2025 024
MNote Rupees
18.2 Accrued profit
Prostit receivable on musharakah finances 2353774 2527653
Less: Suspended income - -
2,353,774 2537 653
18.3 Trade receivables
Oipening balance I 100,000 n 100,000 I
Carnss amwsint 100,000 IELARR YT
Adlowwance for doubtful trade receivables 18,31 = (100, D)
Wiaren of dunng the year {1040, 0000
158.3.1 Movement in provision for doubtful trade receivables
Cipening balance 100, 000 100,000
Less: prowizion srimen off during the vear (100, 000y
Closing balznce - MEIXIRT

IIIﬁ."i\:- TRUST MODARABA Annual Bepon 2023



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20025

18.4.1

18.5

cha] suits' chargn:s receivable

MNote
Opening balance
Expenses incurred
Write off due to sertlement 541
Laross amount
Allowance for doubttul legal suis’ charges receivaliles 15.4.1

Moverment in provision for doubtful legal suits” charges receivables

Opening balance
Prowision made du:’in_g the year

Prowision written off during the vear doe to settlement

Beceivable against sale of Faisalabad Property
Opening balance

Less: provision written off durnng the vear

Legs: provision recogmized

2025 2024
Rupces.
2,718,002 || 2675852
5,000 102,150
3 (a0
2,723,002 2718002
(518,890) (4016,926)
2,204,112 2311076
0,926 466,926
111,964 .
- {60,000
518,800 416,926
549,000 24,000
(549,000) ;
E 24000
= (34000
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2025 24
19 CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note Rupecs
- Current accnunts 19.1 27,538 12,144
- Saving accounts 192 3,564,844 5,366,270
3,392 382 5378414
savings aceount - dividend 5,647,679 50103 881
Balanees with banks - treal 9,040,061 101382 295
Cash i hand 26,302 1,760

9,066,363 101,554 1161

19.1 This inelude bank aceount maintained by Modaraba with State Bank of Pakistan s per the requirement of BSD creulas No_ (M of
205 for recovering CIB service charges having balance of Rs 26,850 [2024: Rs, 11,427,

19.2 These earry profit at rates ranging from 278% wo WL % (2024:01001% to 11O1%) per annum.
2025 024
20 DEFERRED INCOME ON MURABAHA Nare Rupees
Opening balanee 3,180,750 3412 936
Additions L|'|Jti|'|.§ the yeur 3,458,086 3,715 048
E.:.'L'nga'l:.ﬂl:‘d.{ dur'utg the vear {3,585,936) 304R 134
3,052 900 3,180,750
Current portion (2,043,402) {2 272 TR
Non-carrent poction 1,009 498 T 06
2 CUSTOMERS' LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS
Oipening balance 35,098,638 48317513
Received dunng the vear - 2000
Adjusted doring che vear (18,978,520) (12 538,875)
Closing balance 211 17,020,118 35,098 638
Current portion shown as eurrent labilities (53,840,7500 (11,660,170
Non-Current pnrtjlm shiwn as non-current labilites 11,179,368 24 338468
211 These represent deposits received from cogtomens to secure the farah assets given to them.
22 LEASE LIABILITIES AGAINST RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
Orpening balance 7,942,065 2528760
Additions during the vear 4,678,651 f, B0 AR2
12,620,716 0530451
Addd: unwinding of lease Rabiliries 3n 2,678,014 Tan.495
Add: adjustient due to lease modificatinns . dit, 365
Less; purments made during the vear (5,298,642) (2,199 2406)
Gross liability 10,000,088 7,42 065
Less: curzent prrtion (2,730,428) (1,799.925)
Non-curtent pottion 7,269, 660 f,142,142
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221

Mamrity analysis of contracmal cash flows Tt e v

Within one vear but not Later than
A Ak 25 year later than five five years
yoars

{Rupeces)
Undiscounted cash flows 4,994 446 10,527 402 -
Less: discounting (2,265,029) (3,256, 761) -
Diiscounted cash flows 2729467 7,270,621 -
At June HE 2024
Undisconneed cash flowes 5583245 U 486,172
Less: discounting (1,783,325) (3,344,030
Dnscomnted cash flows 1,799 925 fi, 142142

Summary of amounes relaong oo leases charged in different line items of the Anancial statcments 15 as follows:

Carrping amrunt of RO assers i 10,839,957 2068532
Depreciaton charpe i 3,860,426 1,850,474
L nwanding of lease liabilioes R 2678,014 750,405
Repayment of lease ahilicy a 5,208,642 2199 3406
UNCLAIMED PROFIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Opening balance 12,828,131 12,831,007
Add: dividend declared duning the vear 14, S0, D00 -
Less: dividends paid (14,031,043) (3470
Closing balanece 231 13,697,088 128258131
Movement in dividend bank account:

Ohpeming balance 5,0003,881 4 823 47
Add: dividend declared dusing the vear 14,500,000 -
Dividend claim received and sectled (14,031,043 [(2,476)
Peabit vecerved 287,578 320 Ko
Tax on profr recewved (43,018) TH A4S
Charity paid 25 (469,000) (206,000
Bank charges 719y (433
Closing balance 14 5,647,679 50H13 541

Management bas mainmained funds of Bs. 5,647,679 (2024: Rs. 5,003,881) against unclaimed profit distnbunon of Rs. 15,697 (158
[2024: Rs. 12,828 131) resulong shomage of funds of Rs 8049400 (2024: Rs. 7,824 2530, This shomage of funds of Rs. 80449400
refates o unchimed protie dismbunon when Modaraba was managed by Trust Manggement Scevices [previols IManigemcent
company) from incorporaton all 2008 when change of management wook place through appointment of administeator by negistrar
under secoion 19 and 20 of Modaaba Companics and Modambas (Flotaton and Conteoly Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba has
maintained complete funds for unclaimed profic distibugon afver acquisition of Al-Zamin Managemenr Company Limited in 2004

oll date. 2025 M4
(Hestated)

CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES MNote Rupees
Payable to Meodaraba Management

Company (Related party) 37 2,686,354 2O56,102
Provision for Workers” Welfare Fund 517,762 374,375
Accrued expenses 1,310,336 TOlL R
Oicher labilioes 1,931,65% 3,967,467
Sales tax nn mamapement fee payable 37.2 2,882,365 2479412

9 328475 12,738,558

CHARITY PAYABLE

Orpening balance 269,332 .

Addinons during the year i | 408,076 535532
Paded ter revognized charimble instioations {504, 000) (200 ()
Closing balance 108,608 249532

It represents the peofit carned on unclaimed dividends held in aspecialized dividend account maintained with Meezan Bank, as
well as the Shartah non-compliant porton of dividend income. The profics received are donated to approved charnable insoonons.
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26

26.1

6.4

CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

Authorized certificate capiral

2025 20024 2025 2024
MNumber of certificates MNaote —————Rupee s-———-——-
Modamba camtificates of
T 0,000 000 T MY Hs, 10k cach TOO000,000 700,000,000

Certificate capital

2025 20024
MNumber of certificarcs
Modaraba cermificates of Rs,
15,000,000 15,000,000 1) cach I'u]l].' pa:iq.] in cash. 150,000,000 150,000 (00

Modaralya certificates of Hs.
10 each fully paid in cash
12,300,000 E2, 300,000 issued as fully paid bonus 26.3 123,000,000 123 0404 (00

Modaraba cemificates  jssucd
of Hs. 10 cach issued in
comsideration of  asscrs as
2,500,000 2,500,000 pesult of ke over 26.4 25 000, 000 25, 000 (W

29 100,000 20 4, 00 298 000,000 208,000,000

These fully paid bonus modaraba cermtificares of Ba. 10 cach wene ssoed before 2000 when modaraba was managed by Truse
Mamagement He rvices. After change of management company no mndaraba cermficares were ssued as bonus ceroficates from 209
oll daze.

Al-Aamin Mixlaraba Management (Frivare) Limited holds 3,201,588 (2024: 5,201, 5848) Modaraba certficares which represents 18%
(2024: 18" of the equicy stake in the Medaraba (15 against %) a3 roquired by the SECT dde Oader Mo, SUZMRYE Trast/ 200844,

Subsequent w reporting dace, Mro Sohail Asim has become a substantial certificate bolder with a comulative holding of
17.96% on August 29, 2025,

All certificates rank equally with regard 10 ressdual assers of the Modaraba, Certificate halders are entitled w receive all
distributions including profit distnbutions and other entitlements in the form of bonus and right cermficates as and
when declared by the Modaraba, Yotog and other righrs are in proportion te the shareholding,

2025 20124
[Restated)
RESERVES MNote Rupees
Statutory reserve RS 91,634,768 BE.032 (649
Revenue reserves:
- Accumulated losses {40,878,821) (38,294,494,
50,755,947 40737 575

This represents [Jn:ﬁt set aside as n:quirmf under section L3(1) of the Modamaba Regulations, 2021 for Modarabas as
ssued by the Securities and Frchange Commission of Pakistan. During the current vear, the Modaraba has transferred
an ameount of R 3,678,020 (2024: Rs, 4 772097 which represents 2004 (2024: 200%%) of the prosfit after tax,
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28

29
29.1
29.1.1

29.1.1.2

29.1.3

29,14

29.1.5

UNREALIZED L.OSS ON REVALUATION 2025 224
OF INVESTMENTS ——————— Rupeegessem
Opening balancs {3,872,095) 06,500 453
Surplus on revaluation during the year 3,872,095 2620357
f:]-:.-sj.nf_x balanee i (3AT2.095

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

Muotice was served to Trost Modamba dated 28 Auguse 2018, along with cerrain other modarabas, by Sindh Revenoe
Beard {SRB} for the recovery of max ander Sindh Sales Tox on Services Aer, 2001 amennsing o Rs 3852 million
comprising allegedly unpaid sales rax on services rendered in Sindh from vears 2001-12 w0 2017-18,

The Modaraba along with other Modambas has filed a peddon o Honorable Sindh High Coure (SHC) i Seprember 1,
2018, challenging the demand of Sindh Revenue Boord (SRB) on the geounds of non-applicabiling of sales mx, A sty
orcer in this regard has been granted by the SHC stating that no adverse order in respect of the proposed treatment
shall be muacde against the Petitioners. The management of the Modaraba based o ies discussions with its legal counsel iz
of the view that in lighr of the sty order of the Courr and the ments of the maer invoelved, the impugned charge of
sales tax will be quashed and favorable ourcome is expected, Therctore, no provision for any sales sax Bability on rentals
of lease financing bas been made in the finaneial sttements, The eoure divected that ne further cocreive action shall be
taken against the petitioncr, and that the matter may be adjudicated vide a speaking order after providing an cpporuniny
of hc:nring tor the petitioner. The learned counsel for che 1'|.-:;|1r..-r|.dn:'nt raised oo ohjection, and the petition was
aceordingly dispesed of in these werms,

The Assistam commissioner Inland Revenoe (ACIR) has fssued order dated Jume 30, 2022 by creating demand under
sub-seetion 161 of Rs 1038245 along with defanlt surcharge of Bs 809862, The rax payer has filed appeal againse said
order on July 16, 2022 before commissioner Inland Revenue [CIR). During the vear, CIR remanded hack the case o
(ACIR) and mxpayer being aggrieved by the order of CIR filed appeal before Appellate Tribimal Inland Revenue
IATTR). The ATIR annulled che Andings of ACTR and remie the matrer o officer of Inland Revenue (OTR). As ar vear
enel, the matter is pending betore the OIR.

The Depury commissioner Inland Revenue (DCTR) has issued order dated August 31, 2021 by creating demand under
sub-seedon 122 (1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2000 for Rs 5 776892, The Modaraba had filed appeal against said
order betore Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIRA), whe vide order dased 24-]an-2022 remanded the case
with dircetions o pass a speaking vrder by going through the relevant record. Oppormnities of hearing were provided.
During the year, DCIR passed the order dated June 24, 2024 by creating a demand of Rs, 5776892 and mxpayer being
aggricved by the order of DUTR Aled appeal before CIRAL which is pending for adjudication, The management, in
consuliadon with s fax advisor, has determined thar favorable outcame is expected.

The Dieputy commissioner Inland Revenue (TICTRY issued netices dated Avgost 18, 2023 by confronting ameunt of Rs.
143,347 and Rs. 732850 apainst tax years 2020 and 2021 respectively under sub-section 2212 of the Ineome Tax
32 ¥ i 3
Credinance, 2001, These demands pertain 1o the adjustment of refunds against the admited ax labdlines, The Modarala
has submitied 8 decaled tesponse oo the DCIR, accompanicd by comprehensive documentary evidence. Decision is
t + [ . [ )
pendinyg but the management, in conselbon with its tax advisor, has determined that frvorable ourcome is expected.

O December 06, 2022, Sindh Bevenue Board (SRBi issued 2 nodce wader Section 73 of the Stamps Act, 1899
several modaraba companies for inspection of the reenrds regarding suamp duty applicability, The Modaraba responded
on Decernber 22, 2022 that the Modaraba is o non-bBanking financial institution and Stamps ace, 1899 15 noc applicable.
Hewwever withour prejudice to the rghts and remedies and only as a matter of cooperanon, the management partially
eomplied,
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O December 12, 2023 the Modasaba received a demand from Sindh Revenue Board (SEB} against stamp duey of Rs,
2R0,504 and s, 108 5900 lE}]'\]ICﬂL‘A].L on purchase rrders and Prclm.qutln noies respectively, covering the ]'.'ar:uud Juit H,
20020 vo March O3, 2023, The Modaraba respoended on Janvary (8, 2024 thar Ardele 15(k) of the seamps acy, T899 deals
with the mamnufacrunng concerns or business which underrake carrage of stures and materials and as such it is nor
applicable to NBFCs and Modarabas involved in Shariah compliant asset financing. The matter is being dealt at the
association level.

Regarding the stamp duty on promissory note under See 2{22) of Artele 28 of the Stamps Act 1899, the management
has acknomdedged its applicaton and has recognized a provision for the period of July 01, 2022 w0 Tune 30, 20325 in Mo
18 amoundng to Rs. 145 /0.

2916 The Modaraba had entered inte the following financing agreements with different parties who had defanhed:
. . Qutstanding  |Parties under Parties for Mote
Financing ; T
5, No, amount litigation decree No.
1 ljarah 5,026,212 2 2 15
2 Short term Murabaha 28 800 000 2 2 [ 4
3 Long term Murabaha 36,755,652 5 2 3
70,581,864
Legal proceedings were initiated to recover the outstanding amounts and are beimg pursued. The management, in
consulation with its legal advisor, believes that the outeomes will be frvorable,
29.2 Diminishing Musharaka commitments
The Modaraba has entered into Diminishing Musharaka arrangements for vehicles. These arrangements have remadning
rerms ef less than five vears, Such arrangements alse include a elause o enable upward revision of the rental charge on
an annmal hasis according to prevailing marker conditions. Fomre installment payments due under these arrangements at
the vear end are as follows:
2025 2024
MNow 0 ceesese——. Rupees-—m——e———
Mo larer than one year 4,553,496 5,163,244
Later than one year and not larer than five vears 10,527 402 U 456,147
15,080,895 12,649 395
Dishursement of Ljarak f Murabaha / Musharakah o
be made o customers 11,000,000 5, L] MBI
3 INCOME FROM IJARAH - NET
Ineome from fjarah operatons 25,081,272 51,329,593
Less: depreciation on fixed assers given on ijarah 6.1 (15,883,599 (34,206,699
Less: takaful on prah assers 1,788,060y (3,006,158
409,613 13716711
3l PROFIT ON MURABAHA FINANCES
Profit em murabaha finances 3,781,336 4,124,070
Income suspended during the vear 931 - (08, BT
Reversal of suspension income 0.3 103,185 221 (e
3,884,521 4,235 Kk
iz PROFIT ON MUSHARAKAH FINANCES
Profit on musharakah Anances 57,280,082 44,604,634
Incorme suspense reversed during the vear - 23K}
Less: commission of selling agpent (282,500} -
Less: takaful on diminishing musharakah {6,351,885) (& ML AVNEY
5,645,697 45,219 841
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X5 DIVIDEND INCOME ON EQUITY INVESTMENTS 2025 2024
Company Name Note e Rupeeg=s-r-- &
Hub Power Company Limited 512,500 95,000
Artnck Befinery Limited 75,000 -
Mishat Mills Limited 91,500 L 1cHD
Pakisran Refinery Limited 50,0010 5
Fak Peerolewm Litnited 70,0010 {1,000
Sui Nesthern Gas PMipe Line Limired - 135 10D
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limiced - 5,154
Lutky Cement Limired - S, 000
Diescon Chapchem Limited - 20,000
Chl & Gas Development Company - 440,500
Shell Pakistan Limired - 23,000
Favsal Bank Limited - 20,100
Eugrr: Polymer & Cherndcal Timited - 10,000
Lalpis Powser Limined - S0

799,000 G654
331 Dividerd income has been porified by an amount of Ba 38,450 using the punificaten rates preseribed by the Paldsean

Stock Exchange (PSX) to eliminate the portion relating to nen-Shariab compliant incotme,

2025 2024
34 OTHER INCOME MNote 00000 e Rupees=sseee- -
Gain on disposal of farsh assets 151 1,908,293 alk2, 2499
Crain en disposal of ewned fised assets 2,150,460 418,968
Profit en deposit and saving accounts with banks 378,779 526,759
Miscellaneous ncome 4.1 834,762 1,720,895
5,272,294 3,265,924
3.1 This includes an ameunt of Rs. 591,600 (2024 Rs, 73,750 pertaining o documentatien fee.
35 PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES
Cpening balance 21,458,144 21,457,211
Add: chargee during the vear 35.1 124,447 ZR01 344
Less: Murabaha provision written ofF due o settlemer 14.2 - {A010411)
Less: lepal charges receivables' provision
wenrren off due o serdement 15.4,1 {100,000 {00
Met prosvigion reversal for the year 24,447 (7067
Clessing balance 352 21,482,591 21458, 144
2025 2024
351 Break up of provision (net of reversals) for MNeote 0 e Rupees-cmme—-
doubtful receivables charged during the year are
ae follow:
Long weem marabaha finances o4 (1,218) 1,163,951
Showr term murababa finances 14.2 20,000 (130,577
I.L-ﬂg revm mnsharakah finances I3 - 2545720
Short rerm masharakah Anances 14.1 - 9413
ljarah rent receivables 154 6,299 11,633
Legal suits charges receivable 1841 111,964 -
124,447 2891 344
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35.2

36

361

Break up of provision for doubtful receivables
are as follows:

Prowision for doultful ]nﬂ.g term murabalia finances 4.4 ﬁ,ﬁ?H.TTE f},ﬁ_.-'-l-,l_]":.}ﬁ
Prowision for doubrful short term murabaha finances 14,2 8,420,000 8,400, D)
Prowasion for Muosharakah finances la.l 321,061 321,061
Prowvision for Diminishing Musharakah finances 10.5 3,734,822 3,734,822
Prosision for trade receivables 18.3.1 - 100,000
Provision for legal suits changes receivable 15.4.1 515,890 406,926
Recetvable agminst sale of Faisalabad Property 15.5 - 544,000
Provision for doubthol jjaral reneal receivables 15.4 1,265,040 1,271,339
20,933,591 21,458 144
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salarics, allowances and other benefits A5.1 M 36,2 20,559,931 18,105,315
Fees and subscnprion 4,306,365 3H11,794
Drepreciadon on fighe of vse assers T2 3,800,420 1856478
Vehicle running 2,783,196 2077 625
Linwanding of lease liabilities 2,678,014 Thh, 445
Repairs and maintenance 2,337,285 2754105
Rent, rates and raxes 2,039,826 aHa Al
Telephone, postage and courier 1,604,910 1,475,991
Electriciry, gas and water 1,476,878 1,464,146
Drepresiation odr cwn assels 71 903, 2} 1045796
Prnnng and stationery 779,265 B43,485
Bad delars written off - SRR
Auditors' remunernation i3 B89,000 SR, 500
Entermainment 536,335 TAT AT
Traveling and conveyinee 489,565 522,563
Orffice supply 415,384 -
Amortizarion on intangible assets . 407,328 Z2B6812
Legal and professivnal charges 293,000 3R5,000)
Adverizement 218,983 118 435
Insurance 161,937 230,505
Registrar's services 161,801 126,532
Bank charges and commission 24 380 18,550
Miscellancous 454,554 277,774
47,501,657 3H.017 990

This includes Rs, 1014 million (2024: Rs. (.985 millien) in respest of contobution o the saff provident fund,
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36.2 Salaries and wages also inelade salaries and allowanees of execatives as per the following details:
2025 Cihaet Bneetntine Executlves Others
Officer
Rupees
Basic salary 6,056,184 6,277,565
House rent allowance 2,422,248 2,534,000
Medical allowance 615,568 931,141
Other allowances 44,400 674,350
Retirement benefits 603,616 408,769
9,734, 01h 160,825,915
Number of person(s) 1 3 15
2124
Basic salary 5075.144 4,921,284
Haose renr allowance et el el 1,965 660
Medical allowwance 507,504 493 056
Crither allowratices 75,537 TOU %53
Retitement henehts 574012 3T 26
2637144 7,408,165
Number of person(s) 1 3 12

3621 Execcutives have been provided with modaraba maintained cars and are also entitded for reinmburserent of foel expenses.
A per fourth schedule to the Companies Ace, 2017, “Executive” means an employee, other than the chief executive and
direcrors, whose basic salary execeds rwelve hundred theusand ropees ina financial year,

2025 2024

363 Auditors' remuneration e —~RUpees—m—————
Anmoal sudit fee 364,000 316,800
Half yearly review 98,000 R4, 700
Code of corpomate povernance 120,000 104,500
Shariah aucdic fee 15000
Crut of pricket cxpenses 157,000 75,900

B85, 000 581 900

37 MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S FEE

s | The modaraba management company s entided w0 a remuneraton tor services rendered 1 the modaraba under
provision of the Modamba Companies and Modarabas (Floatanon and conmal} Ordinanee, 1980 up re 2 masimuom of
1% per anum of the annual prefics of the Modaraba,

72 Sindh sales tax levied by Sindh Gevernment oo remuneration of Modasaba Management Company has been chavged art
the rate of 135 {June 30, 2024:15%4),

38 LEVY, MINIMUM TAX AND FINAL TAXES
Final tax 3.1 103,913 9,10
Minsrmum tax - 4 742 590)

103,913 4,841 691

381 This represents final taxes paid under secrion 150 of Income Tax Ondinance, 2KH ., in terms of requirements of IFRIC
21 and TAS 37,
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2025 24
39 TAXATION MNote smmmmmmae Rupegg-——-—-—
Current rax expense for the vear 4,356,790 4309915
Prior vedr mration 225,792 B2 03
Preferred tax 222,152 370,632
31 4,804,740 4742580
9.1 Relationship between accounting profit and taxation
Accounting profit before rxanon 23,298,751 253,606,210
Tax ar the applicable tax vare of 29% (2024: 17%) 4,356,796 4,568,354
Tux effect of:
- Permancng dhifferences 222152 -
- Adjustments relating o prior years 225,792 G L3
= Ohthers - 347 200
4,504,740 4,777 668
40 EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Met profit for the year Rupees 18,390,095 21,231.12n
Weghted average mumber of certificates Number 29,300,000 29 B0, 000
Earnings per cerrificare Rupees 0.617 1712

4.1 There s oo diluton effect on the basic cartings per cettificate of the Modaraba.
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41 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before axation
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:
= DL'TJTL"d:i.ﬂ".Jﬂ'.
Linder narah
In wweis use
Right of usc assets
Amortization on intangible assers
Provision for doubtful receivables
- Gun on disposal of ijaral assers
Crain on disposal of owned fived assers
- Loss on dispusal of asscr held for sale
- Loss / {profity oo long term investment
Balances written off
Livss [/ {pn'-ﬁr} on sale of short term Investments
Unrealized loss / (gain) on revaluation of fnaneial assets
at fair value throuagh profit or loss
- Unwinding of lease habilities
- Workers' Welfare Fund
Dividend mcome

Operating profit before working capital changes
Dreerease / (Increase) in curtent assets
- Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Shesrt rerm murabaha finances receivables
- Shot term musharakah finances receivables
- Tjarah rental receivables
Inerease/ (decrease) in current labilides
= Charity pavable
Creditors, accrued and other linhilitics

Cash generated from operations

41.1

2025 2024
(Restated)
MNote  ececeeee.. Bupeeg-—meae---

23,298,751 20,854,519

6.1 15,883,599 34,206,699
71 993,200 1,085,796
7.2 3,860,426 LB56.478H
] 407,528 228,612
124,447 2,401 344
3 (1,908,293) (G2 29%
34 (2,150,460) (41R,968)
= 4244, 5000

TU7,752) 2232230

3l - SO 00
{4,564,535) 5197370
172 (1,795,730) (13,712,270
22 2,678,014 756,495
475,485 524412
3% (799,000) {GHLGTN
12,406,819 3H.331,729

35,705,570 539,186,248
1,073,751 2113074

- 7,508,008

3,217,067 3,502,792
401,210 (1,002,728)

(160,924) 200,532

{3,B85,568) 13,299 463

645,536 21,324,553

3,351,104 B, L0 E4

Changes in Financing Activites
As at June 3,

MNon - cash

Cash flows

As at June 30,

2024 Changes (MNet) 2025
Rupees

Unelaimed profic disizibution 12,828,151 {12,494,176) (14,031,043) 13,697 088
Lease liahilities agminst ight of use assets 7,942,065 (12,643,511) (5,298,042) 10,000,088
20,770,196 (25,137,687)  (19,329,685) 23,697,176
Ag ar June 30, Mon - cash Cash flows | As ar June 30,

2023 Changes {Net) 2024

—---———Rupees--—

Ulnclaimed ]3T\t-ﬁr distrilwtion 12,831 607 (3,470) 12,828,151
Lease liabiliics against vighe of use assers 2,528,769 7,612,542 (2.199,244) 7042065
15,360,374 7612542 (22728 20,770,196

Impact of non-cash changes in lease liabilities comprise of interest charge on lease labilides Rs. 2,678,014

(2024: Rs. '.-'.'-J-IS,-T-[}EJ (refer to note 225,
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42

MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Assets:

Ukperating Doz assets given an leass £ djarah - tanghle
Chperating fixed assets inown use - ngihls
Righe of use assets

lnranmble assct

Leng mevm murabaha finanoes

Lenyg rerm mushambah finunmes

Lesng e depusizs

Long wim investmens

Dreferred tasarivn - nec

Ahart rerm trababa finances - steated
Tiwrah rerial reoensahles « secamd

Shan wrm musharakah Gnonces

Tnerme s refundable

Sheott bisp rvesiniemes

Advances, prepavmsnts and cther recanvnbles
Cash and bank halkanocs

Liahilities:

Dieferred incume on murbah
Customers' kobg berm secariry deposi
Lease lishilivies against right of ase assers
Unchaimed prodr destobsnons

Croditers, acorued and orher liabilises
Chanry pavable

Net Balance

Certlficare bulders' cquiry

Unreafized lnss an revaluanon of Fnvestmenis
Surplos on revaleanon of fixed assers

Met Balane:

Ak

Cash and Bank batances

Investmeenta

Advances, deposits, prepuvineits aed other necercahles
I,iz.|1|:-:1 reneal tecsivahles - secmed

Ingramc f13 refundable

Leomg germ trarzbaks fienees
Asset held for zale

Short wom murababa finaoee: -
Lo term mosharakaly fingnces
Short rertm muasharakabh fnances
Diefurred taxation - nes
Dreposits

Investments

seored

Operating fraed asscis green on lease £ djamb - innmible
Opetanng fxed as5cs in wen use - angible

Right ol waz asacrs

Lotzngible szt

1
in
1%
11
12
h

71

2025

Onie vear o five

Tuotal Up o one year Chver ive years
YT
.......................................... BUPEEE 2o vawris maesn e cismsmi s asnsn e o
31,484,673 15,989,632 15,495,041 N
13,719,220 - 11,238,159 2481031
10,839,557 2,730,428 8,009,529 -
541,412 i, 6T 474,940
47,438,985 H)2H2 404 7,156,581 -
218,355,127 T4, 257,245 144,117,578 -
2652 - 134,800 154,862

1,416,970 1,416,970 - -
25,380,000 ZE 380,000 - -

3,587,715 3,387,715 - .
10,178,689 10,178, 680 - -

B 280 450 5,280,459 - -
14,287,295 14,287,295 - -
10,291,497 10,201,497 . .

B, 1166, 303 4 (6,303 - =

A, 63,220 212,505,573 186,731,958 2,635,893

3,052,500 2,045,402 1,000 4595 -
17,020,118 5,840,750 11,174,368 -
10,000,088 2,730,428 T 60,660 .
13,697,088 13,097,058 - -
9328 475 0,328,475 - -

108,60 108,608 N i
53,207,277 33,748,751 19,458,526
38,755,947 178 b 622 167,273,432 2,035,893
I, 755,947
ﬁ?.’rigﬁd?
2nig

Teal ] E:P e e voar ] {Une vear e ] Ohveer five Vs
T R S T R R o e S S e
1k 384 LLORC. B RN
20970 R8T 20970 RET
11,365 244 11,345 244
3, TRE WIS 1,788 w25
207 Dty AT =
7 81772 41 708 561 S0 16D
ELLIEE 25,480 00 -
174 665,150 15 B} 150 129 430 w3l
13,345,756 13,385,756
1630122 1630 VEE - -
T 2 E 1 3% K00 154 H6D
L3R4 &0| - plctie ] | -
T4 T 15,554,571 SR EUERTY
13,974 e 11,732 817 2.2 B4T
B508 512 [ BPL A o] ERE N
Tk, 4 Lt HAD et
414,351 428 1953155354 0 A3LGS 24017

(73)
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43

43.1

43.1.1

43.1.2

43.1.3

RISE MANAGEMENT
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Modaraba's acdvitics cxposc it to a varery of financial risks: matket risk (including currency risk, other
price risk and interest rare risk}, credic rsk and liquidiey risk. The Modaraba's overall risk management focuses
on the unpredicmbiliy of financial markers and secks o minimize porential adverse effects on the financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board) of the Management Company, chief
operatng officer and chict financial officer. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as
well as policies covering specific arcas such as currency risk, other price nisk, interese rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risle.

The Modaraba's overall risk management proceduces, 1o minimize the potential adverse effects of fnancial
market on its performance, are as follows:
Market risk

Marker risk 15 the risk that the fair value of future cash Jows of 2 financial instrament will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign currency, profic rare, commaodity price and equity price thar will affect the Modaraba®s
incoume or the valoe of its holdings of financial insrruments.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the visl thar the fair value or furure cash flows of a financial insgument will fluctuate because
of changes in foragn exchange rates. Cuarreney sk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or
receivahles and pavables that exist due o transactions in foreign correncies, The Modaraba is not exposed o
currency risk arsing from currency exposure as Modaraba is not involved in foreipn currency transactions,

Profit rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctate because
of changes in marker profit rares,

Az at the reporting date the profie rare profile of the Muodaraba's profit bearing financial instruments were as
uneler:

2025 2024
Fixed rate instruments MNote @ e —-Rupeeg---a--- -
Financial assets
Shorr term murabaha finances 14 25,380,000 25,400, 00
ljarah rental receivables 15 3,387,715 3,788,925
Long term murabaha finances i 47,438,985 47817721
Long term musharakah finances I 222089949 17840012
Shore term musharakah finances 16 10,178,689 13,395,756
Finaneial assets
Banle balances - deposit accounts 19 3,364,544 5,366,270
Bank balances - dividend account 19 5,647,079 5,013 851

Fair value sensitivity analvsis for fixed rate instruments
The Modaraba does not account for any fxed rare financial assets av fair value through profic and loss.

Therefore, a change in profic rate at the reporing date would not affect profic or loss of the Muodaraba.
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43.14

43.2

43.21

The Madaraba accounts for any varable rate financial asscts at fair value through profic and loss. Therefore, a
change in profit ratc at the reporting date would affect profit or loss of the Modaraba,

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
Lf profit rates, as at the reporting date, fluctuates by 1% higher S lower with all other variables held constant,
profit before taxation for the vear would have been Rs, 33,648 (2024: Rs. 53,663} higher / lower. This analvsis

is pl'r:parcd assuming the amounts of floating rate instruments catstanding at reporting dates were outstanding
for the whaole vear.

Price risk

|7.:.]u:ir_i.' L‘.‘l]'i.l'.‘l_' rigk Tepresetits the risk of adverse movements in the fan vadue of L"I.L!ILET'!.-' securities due
fluctoations in the KMI-30 Index or the prices of individual shares. Such risk arises from the Modaraba's
investments in equity securities whose future prices are uncertain. In line with the Modaraba Regulations,
2021 and internal risk management policies, the Modaraba manages price risk through diversificaton and by
maintaining cxposares within prescribed limies.

The Modaraba controls this risk by restricting exposure to a single investee company to a maximum of 100 of
the investee company’s issved capital and the Modaraba™s ner assers, in accordance wich the Modaraba
Regulations, 2021, Portfolio allocasons are reviewed regulardy and at least on a quarterly bamis o ensure
appropriate diversifAcation across induseries and individual stocks.

Credir risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other
parry by failing w0 discharge an oblgation, The carrving amownt of financial assers vepresenes the maximum
credic exposure. The maximum exposure to credit tslk at the reporting date, nec of smpairment, was as
Frllovars:

2025 2024

Mote -——————Rupees--—- -
Bank balances 19 a.040,061 100,382,205
Short tetm murabaha finanees 14 25,380,000 25,400 (K0
ljaral reneal receivables 15 5,387,715 3,788,925
Long term musharakah finances In 222,089,949 I7H 400,012
Short term musharakah Anances 16 10,178,689 13,305,756
Lemg term murabaha Anances ] 47,438,985 47 817721
Long rerm deposirs 11 294,662 294 662
Sheert term Investments 17 14,287,295 20,970,987
Lomg term Investments 12 - 2284801
Advances, depaosits and other receivables 15 10,291,497 11,365 248
342 388 853 314,100,407
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43.2.2 Concentration of credit risk
CGreographically all credit exposute is concentrated in Pakistan,

The maximum exposare to oredit risk for receivables {murabaha financing, musharakah financing and ijarah)

=i

s at the reporting date by type of costomer was:

2025 2024
—mem——-Rupees---------
Individaals 112,740,683 75,465,076
Trading of goods and services 47,398,433 51,632.834
Educational Institutions 18,484,693 51,024,605
Food and Allied 31,630,653 33,372,362
"],\L'chm.-lﬁg'_; Fe Commurndcation 15,1537,2{]3 17.455.756
3l & Gas 27,742,927 15,693,553
Registrar Services 15,079,548 14,384,790
Agriculbure 14,800,000 14,050,000
Insurance / Tracker 10,885,800 L0, 290 231
Stecl 16,704,292 0, R35,928
Advertising/ Media agency - 9,630,220
Cotstroetion 7,400,043 86535112
Packaging 5,048,957 7,995,383
Healtheare 30,158,328 7463671
Dairy & poultry 1,661,380 2255775
Textle 1,096,727 1,831 297
Clearing Forwarding - B77,545
Societies - 53 21 40

356,469,667 332,455,294

43.2.3 The aging of murabaha, muosharakah, lease / fjarah reatal and rrade receivables and related impairment loss as
at the reporting date 15 as follows:

Aging of murabaha, musharakah, lease / ijarah rental and trade receivables

Mot past due 272,446,445 252467 THS
Past due 1 - 180 days 1,739,850 3,395,763
Past due 181 days - 1 vear 1,581,595 Q47 877
Past due 1 - 2 vears 2,300,000 236,292
Move than 2 vears 73,047,470 70478771

351,115,360 327,520,488

Aging of impaired murabaha, musharakah,

ijarah rental and trade receivables

Past due 181 - 365 days -

1 -2 veats 6,804,441 6,779 904

More than 2 vears 14,678,150 14,678,130
21,482,591 21,458 144

The Modaraba has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy parties and obuaining sofficient
collareral, where appropriate, as a means of miggating the risk of financial loss from defauls, The Modaraba
also uses other publicly avalable financial informadon and irs own wading records to rate its customers, The
Modaraba's exposure and the credit ravngs of s parties are continuougly monirored and the aggregare value
of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by
couttterparty limits thar are revieveed annoally.

TRUST MODARABA Annual feport 20125 76)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

43.2.4

43.3

The ITIAfAgEmerit imdrtiitors and limics Modaraba's EXpOSULE to credit risk rhrnugh n1nr'|i.t0:|"[ng of elients’ eredit
exposure, teviews and conservative estmates of provisions for doubtful recevables, if any, and through the
prudent use of collateral policy. The management is of the view thar it is not exposed o significant
concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately diversified in organizations of sound financial
standing covering warious industrial sectors and segments,

The credit L]u:{lir':" of financial assets that are neithet frast due nor impiﬂrr] catt be assessed I':a_!.’ referenice to
external credit ratings {(if available) or to histodeal information abour counterparty default eate. The mble
below shows the bank balances and investments held with some major counterparties at the reporting date:

Raring
Short tern

Rating
Apency 2025

Rupees

2024
Rupees

Meezan Bank Limited AT+ JCR-VI3
Seate Bank of Pakistan L =

9,013,211
26,850

10,370,868
11,427

9,040,061 10,382 295

Further, the Modaraba's exposurce to credic nsk and imparment losses relared 1o Iovestmenrs, Murabaha
financing, larah fnancing, and other receivables are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements,

The Modaraba's exposure related to fjarah receivables, murabaha receivables and musharakah receivables are
secoredl by collaterals held and the Meodaraba's portfolic of financial assets is broadly diversified and
transactions are entered intn with diverse credit worthy counterparties thereby mitgating any sipnificant
concentration of credit risk,

Liquidity risk
Ligquidiry risk is the risk that sn entite will encounter difficulty in meeting ebligatons assoctated with finaneral liabilites.

The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidiey is to ensure, as far as possible, thar it wall abways have sufficient hguidiey to
meet its liabilines when due, under both normal and stressed conditons, without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking
damags 10 the Modaraba's reputadon. Owing o the fact that the Modaraba is in & positive working capital positon at the vear
entel, the management believes the liquidity dsk to be low,

The table below analvses the Modaraba's fnancial liabilities into relevant mamtity groupings based on the remaining pedod at
the reporting date oo the contractual manariey dare. The amounts disclesed in che rable are the contractual undiscounted cash
foms. Balances due within 12 monrhs eonate to their canving balances as the impacr of discounting is not significant,
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June 30, 2025

Lease liabilities against right of use assets
Unclaimed profic distributions

Creditors, acerued and other liabilities
Charity pa]rah]t,:

June 3, Mi24

Lease liabilrics aganst right of use assers
Unelaimed prnﬂr distributions

Creditors, aecrued and orher habilines
Chanity pn.:;rlbll:

Carrying Contractual || Less than Between 1 Over 5 vears
Amount cash flows 1 year and 5 years o
{Rupees)
1,000,088 10,000,088 2,730,428 7,269,060 -
13,697,088 13,687,088 13,687,088 - -
4,328,475 9,328,475 6,455,796 2,474,679 -
108,608 108,608 108,608 - -
33,134,259 33,134,259 22989920 10,144,339 v
7,042,065 7,942,065 1,799 023 6,142,142 B}
12828131 12821131 12828131 -
10266532 ID266532 10,266,832 3 5
268,532 26% 532 268 532 -
31306560  FLA0GS60 25164414 6,142,142

Mote 42 to the financial statcments summarizes the maturite pruﬁ]c of the Modaraba's assets and habilides,

43.4 Fair value of financial instruments

All financial assets and financial fiabilities are inidally recognived ar the fair value of consideraton paid or received, net

transachon £osts 48 apprropriate, and subsequently cerded at Fair valee or amerdzed cost,

of

The carrving values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in financial statements approsimare to their fair saloes. Faie
walue is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

Fair value estimation

Financial asscrs which are tradable in an open market are revalued ar the marker prices prevailing on the reporting date, The
estimared fair valoe of all ether finaneial assets and Anancial labilines is considered oo significandy different from book vahee
as there 15 an active market for the Modaraba lsted equity investments,

Fair value hierarchy

Faur value hicrarchy ::ﬂqgnrit'a are described in noee 416 o the fnancial starements.,

The follevemy table presents the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair viloe:

June 30, 2025
Financial Assets:

Short term investments {note 17)
Long tenm investnents (note 12)

Jure 3, 2024
Financial Assers:

Short term investments (nete 17)
Lt term investments fnote 12)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees
14,287,295 = - 14,287,295
20,970 937 - 2050887
2284 801 - 2,284 801
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43.5 Financial instruments by categonies
A fair value
through OCT Assets at fair
(equity value through
Mote insgtruments  |[Amortized costl| profit or loss Taoral
designated {Mandatorily
upan initial Measured)
2035 recognition)
Rupees
Cash and hanl balances 19 - 9,066,363 - 0,066,363
Short term invesiments 17 - - 14,287,295 14,287,295
Advances, deposits and other receivables 18 - 10,291,497 . 10,291,497
Murabaha finances - secured 14 - 25,380,000 - 25,380,000
Short term musharaleah finances (secured -
comsidered good) 16 - 10,178,689 - 10,178,685
Drirninishing musharakab financing i - 218,355,127 - 218,355,127
ljarah rental receivables - secured 15 - 3,387,715 - 3,387,715
Murabaha finances 9 - 7,438,085 - 47,438,935
Long term deposits 1n - 204 662 - 294 662
- 324,593,038 14,287,295 338,680,533
W
Cagh und bank bafances 1% 101, 384 01651 10,384,061
Shore term investments 17 J0TET 20,470,987
Adwarees, deposits and orher reeeivables 18 11,305,244 11,365 244
Muralutha finances - secured 14 L LNRA L] 25,400,000
Shore termy musharakah fmances secored -
considered pood) 16 13,395,756 13395756
Ddiminishing musharaksh fimancing 11 174,665,150 174,663,150
ljarah rental receivables - secured 15 3. 7ER 925 3, 7ER 925
Muralraha finances 9 47 817721 47,817,721
Lemg term deposits 11 - 204 662 24 662
Lamng teem investmicnts 12 2,254,841 - - 2284801
2,284 #i 247,111,563 20,070 08T 3100367 351
(K25 2024
Mot Rupees
Lease liahilities against nght of use assems x 1ik, b0, (35 T2 065
Unclaimed profic distobutions a3 13,697 088 12525 151
Creditors, acorned wnd other Tabilites x4 ®328.475 10,206 452
Charity pavable EE] 108,508 264 552
33,134,259 31,3006, 560

43.6

Operational risks

Operational risk is the sk of diveet or indiregt boss ansing from o wide variery of canses assockned with the processes, rechnulogy
an] infrastructure ﬁupp:\rring the Modaraba's operations gither meernally wathin che Modaraba or excernally ar the Modaraba's

service providess, and from external factors other than credit, marker and Ggquidicy risks such as those anising from legal and

regulatary regquirsments and generally accepted standards of investment mansgement bebavior, Olperational tisks arise from all o

the Modarala’s scuvitics,

The Modaraba®s bjective 15 o manaye operational sk so s ro balance liminng of fnancial losses and damage o i repotoon with

iwchieving its objective of generating returns i certificare holders,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The primary cesponsibility for the development and implementaton of controls over operational risk
rests with the Board of Directors of the Management Company. This responsibility encompasses the

controls in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segreganon of dunes between various funcoons, roles and

requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
compliance with regulatory and ether legal requirements;
docomentation of controls and pfrgccdurus;

- requirements for the periodic assessment of operatdonal nisks faced, and the adequacy of conrrols

and procedures 1o address the risks identified;
ethical and business standatds; and

risk mitigation, including insurance whete this is effective.

43.7  Capital risk management

The Modaraba's objectives when managing capital are to safepuard the Modaraba's ability to continue as

a poing concern in order o provide return for certficate holders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain healthier capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize cernficare holders value,
The Modaraba manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to i, in the light of changes in
economic conditons. There were no changes to the Modaraba's approach to capiral management during

the vear and the Modaraba is not subject to excernally imposed capital requirement,

The Modarsba linances its operations through equity and management of working capital with a view o

mainitain an appropriate miy berween vadous sources of finance to minimize 13sk.

(10,384 061)

337,353,514

2025

e Rupees
Total equiry 348,755,947
Less: cash and bank balances {9,066,363)
Capital 339,689,584
Total liabilities 53,207,277
Debt to equity ratio 16%

72957 674

22%%

Further, the Modaraba's exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related o Investments, Murabaha
financing, Larah tinancing, and other receivables are disclosed in the relevant notes o the financial

statciments.,

The Modaraba's exposure related to ijarah receivables, murabaha receivables and musharakah receivables
are secured by collarerals held and the Modaraba’s portfolio of financial assers is broadly diversified and
transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant

concentration of credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

44

44.1

45

46

REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVES / KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the vear as renmuneratuon sand benefits wo execatives [
kew management personnel of the Modaraba are as follows;

Executives / Key
Management Personnel

2025 | 20124
------------- Rupees=—amamazaacacs
Managerial remuneraton 6,050,184 3,970,144
Heuse rent allowance 2,422 248 2,300,202
Medical allowanee 05,508 597 564
Ciher allowances 44,400 ThR.537
Reurement benefirs 05,616 AT 612
9,734,016 10,938,523
Number of persons 3 4

These exccutves have been provided with the Modaraba mainmined cars and are alse enntled  for
reimbursement of fuel expenses. Chief exceutive officer hag nil salary benefits as disclosed in noee 36.2.

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT

Gender Pay Gap staternent under Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Ciccular 10 of 2024
Following is gender pav gap calealated for the year ended June 3, 2025:

2025 2024
Rupees
Mean hoorly rate - Male 23,156 22693
Mean houtly rate - Femnale 47,733 B0667
------ Percentage---—
Mean Gender pay gap -106.14% -123.2794
Median Gender pay gap -194,12% J3OT Ba

The disclosed ratos veflect the overall yender pay gap across the Modaraba, Compensadon is determined
E.L]uiZTFIl'IJ‘_f' _FLI-]' .I]] CI'l:IFI|{:I‘_.'{'.I'.":,i|I 1.?’-"H.'l'l [:L'F.L'LHIJ.: I'l]“..']'I'IbL'T!_ﬂ rt.'.nu]nt:mtm‘] [&l1] *hﬂ: :l']ﬂ“ﬁi:ﬁ [FJ'- l'“l{'.. L‘.".\Z.F-L‘:E‘J'i.'.l'lL'J.:1 L'll]ft!ilﬂl:..‘l":(.:ﬂs..
and performance, in line with SECP requirements,

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

A related party transacton 15 2 fransfer of resouroes, services or ubl[g_atlnnn betaeen a n:‘pnrrjng tntir}« and a
relaved pary, regardless of whether a price is charged.

key manzgement F:.‘.r.:iul'ln-r! are those persons h:wi’ng authonty and rc.'spnnsibilj#}-' for P1:1.[||1E:r|9;__ ti,i,rm:rjng and
controlling the actvines of the enmty, direetly or indirecty, inecloding any direcenr {whether execunve o
otherwise) of that enrity,

A relared party &5 a person or entity that is related to the entiey, Related parties of the Modaraba include the
Modaraba Management Company [Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited], directors and key
management personnel of the Modaraba Management Company, key management personnel of the Modaraba
and their close family members, the provident fund must and enrities with common direcrors or under common
management and control.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Comtribution to the provident fund s made in accordance wath the services rules. Modaraba Management fee, if
any, 15 accrucd in accordance with the requirements of the Modaraba Regulations, Remunerntion of ey
management personnel ave in accordance with the terms of their emplovment. Ocher transactions are carried out
at agread terms,

Amounts duc from and due o related parties are shown under respective nores o these financial statements. All
transactions are based on commercial terms and are approved by the Board of Directors, Outstanding balanees
at the reporting dare are unsecured and incerest free, There have been no guarantees provided or received for
any related party receivables or pavables.

2025 2024
Transactions during the year MNote Rupees
Basis of
Related party a.smhn . MNature of transaction
z Relationship

Al-Zamin Modaraha Modaraba Management fee 37 2,686,354 2 956,102
Management (Prvare)  Managemenmt
Lirmited Company

CMfice rent 1,776,000 24 10K}

Electric bill back-charged 312,465 129113
Emplovees' Provident  Assoclated Contribution for the year 1,114,385 DH4 828
Fund undertaking
FExecutives and Asseciatod Loan given dusing the vear 181 200,000 =
close relarives therenf  persons Repayment of loan recerved 151 178,000 -
Executives and Associated Gain on diposal 2,163,240 408, 908

close relatives theteof  persons

The amounts above do not include salaties and other untpln}:ut,: henefits of the executives of the Modaraba
which have been discloscd in note 44,

2025 2024

Outstanding balance as at the reporting date Now Rupees
Al-Zamin Modaraba Payable against management 2,686,354 114,947
Management (Private) fee
Litmiited
Exeoutives Laan receivables 151 232,000 S0
Exerutives Pavable to Ather [mam - 46,0060 -

Vice President Finance
Executives Payable o Hamida Ageel - 620,000 6211, 00

Company Secretary

TRUST MODARABA Annual Kepon 20235 |si'



[TELETTN (T - - - - = E LI3E0E JHaInD- IO 0 STSRpL
SHE 5Ll - ST ROR R 1 FIOELNDT - - BIIBTOLL G TS0'E sAnRrgay iesmios spguiady
RHLSETED ZRETEEn | FER GHITDR CB TR [RFESI65E 60 LETF FHCRET T IH0CIRT T LA sRser ferardar pgeaodiy

Ni8'Sil [T aliGET T AEEH BOLTONTL LT LT L LEF I 0 LTE FLIOBLE aoad sumenfor apgriaday

lake0eE I e E LHEETL) - - - {erF'ven FRARIM IR JUF (RERAATY Sliisiac )

HETILEL NE'TILTI : : 4 LEETIRT LEREIET - 5 - AU AL 30 E0REN[Ea

L (RS F Mg PrreifEadu

PEHHS 1 RS OEL' TG G IE L WE'LEE 9 ITE 09 SEEEOEE LAF ST HWR'LIE'G Tes et AmOAA 1]
LELEELT & BT G T % E6T RG] = - ERT R0 T G FLLTEIIE 33U}
oL : T RN : fopr'zersh . (eReipeny) {nog'ss L - astiadEa ssudinzug
(YR ] € - LG T ; Uhns Cam'aT) N e (GasEen'sT) - NIRRT et |
R Lhl T nEH LT £G5S ST FST G TS TENNET LS wrErsT 18 reg'y FUILHIEGNS [FOLTRNT LML SI0300E By
= A4 g 1% o 3 119 1y BIOJULLINGE NKTIR
sgurd [/ saniraaar anaurfag
..ruur._n_m. -
FFAEELLT FIFURLILT BRI ST FAWELL] ]
[, FIUSAN SR AL R SRHITLLT HEER [EIsT, LI T ES ATy
LEAEIRA Ery EA| RNy YuyErmysngy qered] gy
_ FEig 0 Hm[ Il 570z ‘g 2un [ ]

Ty 1oL R Ry Pl T .u._n__.amﬁ”_uﬁ.._ f=T ygp Ty shoaie u__"_...rrrm.u.._ L)) Fi1F WL wrswidas L

SIBAEUY ALy
SN 0T Sk s Buung fomeFas Funedo 0somprg LU U AR 200 s pUr (T SOonsesiTy ey SN ROute 8 O s o) s s we oo e swsardss dugpesdo waanieg sanud sagsad

Fpy OSED 234y pud 10 Famesads w wopanpar sunoesadu weep spoad agead ssoid anfon ssaesneg STurpmipu) soepa S sy e O sk PRt
A 51 aousuLkipid aUEeg TRUSEIENE SN UK TR0 [T S0UN0E IUE sthestaap Sree o aeodlind sq rop Eiemdas euen ssaomme s g snsar funsidn 30 STl SO0 DAGNIIN Y M

s funeredn Aok e A Weeg B ol preasFail e sang e Sonesds op)

530500 B0 e samedienes Iy auaimnenr ambs U) apeis suaresEan | PRLTETLISEE AT
SenmETHy Mus Fumsapuns og pornay ssudmes ] SOLEULY YEJLIEgRa]y -
UEEHADPETES T 203 s e Fupn o e g o i Swang gy e -
S OAREATS BUCMITAL 1M S J0 2|68 SAVIERY VBRI -
SEIUTS O 30 HOPER] surondas o saday

-puraitan Bl amey u.rn_...h.n.._._._.¢ __ﬂ_q._u.“_um:n,.m..: S BOUISEIpY __..___. M PUE paonp ancl anp vl [l sk ] Funsodag
IEEEAENLERL [ECTRINT U POSEY 0UALIeLad I SIEEISESSE PUE $200M08AT J BONEIGHE W {5eR] GorEnag] Sulesndy Fangry) Jeaiicy AAUn0aEs] 130 0 oL pausasd s el oUsnagen g e (Reeg sasis fumede
Ay pAnnEEpE ey oo ay -auaufag FFTOPTIC IAC3D JUF ISR WIS JERTAJTR IV S SUITIAE PR SR ) 13EnE A0 I ;.._.ua_m....ﬁ_.._ w._._ﬂ._—_ weel 1 ._u..._.pm&_.._..a spomuTnla pue Lae jo Az ] nenudias ..._:.._.n_n._.um_"_ s

DNLLHOdTY LNAWDES

oLy

Tif

ik

¢Z0Z ‘08 ANNT AAANT dVAX AHL 4O
SLINIWAHLVLS TVIONVNIS HHL OL S4LON

—
(B3]

TRUST MODARABA Annual Bepon 202

gt



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

4

!

.3

Reconciliaton of reportable segments revenues, profit or loss, assers and liabilides is as follows:

Revenues

Tristal eV LS fon 1'r_'l'.r:|.rr.'1|ﬂt.' .chm::nr:{
Uhther revennes
Modaraba's revenues

Profit

Total profir for reportable segments

Cither income

Eair value loss on asser held for sale

Operating cxpenscs

Muodaraba Management Company's fec

Services sales tax on the Management Company's remuneration
Warkers' Welfare Fund

ALV, min'mum 21X Ang -LI'I:l AXCS
Levy, i t ] final ¢

Assels

Total assets for reportable segments
Corporate assets unallocated:
Advances, prepayments and other reecivables
Income tax refundable
Dieterred taxaton - net
[.ﬂng__ ECrm I:I:I'.‘FHEiTE
Bjarah assets
Cash and bank balances

Total assets as per the balance sheet
Liabilities
Toral liabilitics for reportable segments
Corporate habilites unallocated:
Unelaimed profic distributions
Creditors, accrued and ather liabilines
Charity payable
Lease liabilines against righe of vse assers
Tuoal liabilities as per the balance sheet

2025 2024
————-Rupees-—-———-
(Restared)
69,211,659 06,958 K54
3,364,001 045727
72,575,660 0l 904 581
71,001,199 71,779, T8O
3,364,001 G45,727
- {4,246 5067
(47,501,657) O3S 70
(2,686,354) {2.956,102)
(402,953) (3R4 293
(475,485) (324.412)
{4,908,653) (4,841,691}
18,390,098 20,854 519
359,153,481 371,257 861
1,650,500 2881517
5,280,459 3,997 069
1,416,970 1,639,132
294,662 204,662
25,100,789 23,807 156
9,066,363 10.384.061
42,809,743 43,003,567
401,963,224 414,351 428
20,073,018 31TYIRE
13,697 088 12,525,131
9,328,475 100,206,852
108,608 269,552
10,000,058 7942 065
53,207,277 TihAH5 s

Certun liabilities, assets, other income and other operating charges of the Modaraba cannor be allocated o a
specific segment. Aceordingly, these amounts have been classified as unallocated.

There are no differences between the measurements of the reportable segments' profits or losses, assers and

liabilitics with the Modaraba's profies or losses, assets and liabilites.

There are ne changes from prior vears in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment

p];nﬂ Eor ]t,l!i!i-,

There are no asymmenrical allocatons o reportable segments.

All Ni-current assers of rhe. Mnc]:n':ﬂm e |mq‘.an.:r] j.n Pﬂ.kisr:ln @5 oat thr: 1'|:.11nr11'11g d.:qhe;.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
48 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES -==-=- Mo of employees -
MNumber of emplovees as at June 30, 16 16
:"l.v:rag:: rumiber of t‘rITrl].ﬁ}'l:EH du:ri,l;ﬁg the yer 16 16
2025 2024
449 PROVIDENT FUND Audited Audited
Sire of the fund fin mp:.'r:.ﬂ} Q*TI}S,JWZ q,ﬂﬂﬁ#ﬁﬁ
Percentage of investments made T7.28% #3.31%
Fair value of investments (in rapoes) 7,500,000 700,000
Cost of investments made {in mapees) T, 500,000 T 500,000
491 Hn'al;-u}'l of investment in rerms of amount and prreentage of the size of the p]'nvi:h'.m tund are as follows:
2025 2024
Invesument Investment Investment Investment
Rupees as a % of size Ruopees as a %o of sizc
of funds of funds
Inresoment in Term Deposiis 7,500,000 77.28% 500,006} 53.31%
7,500,000 TS0 00
49.2 Invwvestmients out of the funds of prm:i:l;r:nr fund have been made in scoordance with the Provisions of section 218
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated tor this purpose,
50 Specific Disclosures for Sharia Compliant Companies
Ij Bulance as at ]u.r.m 30, 20025 Maote 2R i e §
Rupees
Lease lmbilides against vight of wse asscrs T.269 600 0 142,142
A Grels
].1"-|1;1= TETEN IS ESTITES Shariah :':*:mpli:ml. 12 = 2,284 #01
Shaotr terms Investmen s Shariak |:r.~mr.h||u.|tl' 17 ]'4.13?,2‘95 20 WP NRT
Cash and bank balances Shaciah cramplian. 12 U, s, 365 1 AH B
ti) Transactions for the vear ended June 30, 2025
Imgosrig: Fraom ii.ﬂr-,qih e Shariah g'::m]!hn.nr il L 13716710
Treodie on murabahas finances Shariak |:|..-r|.1.p|j2|1.|. 3 3.334,521 4,235
Pecfit o pvesharnkal: Anances shatieh compliane 52 S, 645,697 45214541
Imvidend incesnre on Uiy NV EsLmenis Shariash cu'-|11|$||:|.n.r R ?W,mﬂ GG TR
Craiin £ losk’ o sake of shoot erm investmwnes Sharlah complinee 4. 564,555 (51T AT
Crcher wersme Eharialy complan 34 R AT2 204 3268524
Sonree and detailed breakap of other income:
Gain om dr'-.|'s|:>;.1| ot fjaraly apsers Sharaly |:'|>|,ﬁ|_1|1.|.nr i 1.5.1 1,908,293 Bk 205
Crain on disprsal of owaed fixed assees Shariah compliant 2,150,460 ATA R
Peafie own depaosin andd saving aceounes with banks Bhavieh complian ATRITY 526,752
Mincellaneons incoame Shariah |:'|:|1.'.p|i:|.n|. A1 E,’ﬂl,?ﬁz 1,720,508
I-ixp.er.m.-. on ijurah assErs:
Unmwinding of kease lahilides Shariah coonplinoT 3 (2,678,014} (754, 1%5)
iii} Mamecs of the ['..nnl.pﬂrl!.r's sharizal mmpliﬂl:l fimancial institutions hrrsmgl:rnr_'nl

1. Meewan Pank Timeoed
2. Firat Halib Mosdaraba
3, UL Mexlarabn

v} Talkaful O TGS
Adamijee [nsumnce Company Limited
IGT General Insurance Limired
.l‘S-E"!;ul'iI"_\r' Ciener] Insuranes {_‘.r'-n'.pnnl.r Tl resdd
Jubilee General lnsurance Conpany Lonited
Preamier Inpuaranee Limired
TPL Drrecr Insurance Limmited

Biank: deprosic
[arah Aszzers
Ijrah Asscts

Winderw Tuleaful
Windosy Takaful
Woimelorw Takatul
W imedeawe bl
Windom Tadafiil
Vinclorw Takabal
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

51 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent o reporting date, Mr. Sohail Asim has become a substantial certificate holder with a cumulative holding of

17.90% on ;"'.u.!-__:uﬁt 29, 225,
52 CORRESPOMNDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for purposes of comparison and
better presentation, Mo sipnificant rearrangements or reclassifications have been made in these fnancial statements
during the current vear, except as disclosed in Nate 5,

53 GENERAL
The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees unless otherwise stated.
54 AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved tor issue by the Board of Direcrors of the Management Company in irs
mecting held on 24 Seprember, 2025,

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

N Qg"-&ﬁ-

___,_o-"

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Pattern of Certificate Holding
As on 30 June 2025

Number of Certificate Holding Total Percentage
Certificate
Holders Frem - To Certificate Held
719 1 - 100 30,259 0.10%
905 101 - 500 264 489 0.89%
593 501 - 1000 516,942 1.73%
318 1001 - 5000 800,834 2.69%
79 5001 - 10000 598,231 2.01%
24 10001 - 15000 299,347 1.00%
21 15001 - 20000 375,837 1.26%
14 20001 - 25000 35412 1.06%
10 26001 - 320000 275,507 0.92%
3 30001 - 35000 98,780 0.33%
& 35001 - 40000 228,443 0.77%
1 40001 - 45000 45,000 0.15%
8 45001 - 50000 389,480 1.31%
3 50001 - 55000 155,910 0.529%
2 55001 - 60000 110,573 0.37%
2 60001 - 65000 127,000 0.43%
3 65001 - 70000 207,740 0.70%
3 70001 - 75000 219,040 0.74%
1 75001 - 20000 78 382 0.26%
2 85001 - 90000 176,652 0.59%
1 90001 - 95000 90,333 0.30%
1 95001 - 100000 96,705 0.32%
1 105001 - 110000 107,971 0.36%
1 115001 - 120000 118,100 0.40%
1 120001 - 125000 121,457 0.41%
1 130001 - 135000 131,060 0.44%
1 140001 - 145000 141,000 047%
1 160001 - 165000 164,506 0.55%
1 225001 - 230000 227,655 0.76%
1 290001 - 295000 291,200 0.98%
2 295001 - 300000 600,000 2.01%
1 10001 - 315000 310,500 1.04%
1 395001 - 400000 396,500 1.33%
1 485001 - 500000 500,000 1.66%
1 5260001 - 5265000 5,261,388 17.66%
1 15925001 - 15930000 15,927,807 53.45%
2,734 29,800,000 100%:
TRUST MODARABA Annual Bepon 2025
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CATEGORIES OF CERTIFICATEHOLDERS
AS AT JUNE 2025

Categories of ';::i:if:;:: Total Certificates Percentage
Certificateholders CAMIS Gate: Held
Holders

Associated companies, undertakings and related parties
Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited 1 5,261,388 17.66%
Investment Corporation of Pakistan 1 9,100 0.03%
Directors, CEO & their spouse and minor children - - -
Executives - - -
Public sector companies and Corporations - - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, 11 312,040 1.05%
Non-Banking Finance Institutions, Insurance 1 400 0,00%
Companies, Modarabas and Mutual Funds 3 1,800 0.01%
Joint Stock Companies 23 167,699 0.56%
Individuals 2,686 23,961,073 20.41%
Others i} 86,500 0.29%

Total 2,734 29,800,000 100.00

Certificateholders holding five percent or more certificate in the Modaraba

Faisal 1 15,927,807 53.45
Al-Zamin Modaraba Management {(Pvt.) LTD. 1 5,261,388 17.66
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